Public Agenda Pack

N Somerset
N¢ Council

Notice of Meeting of

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE - CHILDREN AND FAMILIES

Wednesday, 10 January 2024 at 10.00 am

Sedgemoor Room, Bridgwater House, King
Square, Bridgwater, TA6 3AR

To: The members of the Scrutiny Committee - Children and Families

Chair: Councillor Leigh Redman

Vice-chair: Councillor Evie Potts-Jones

Councillor Suria Aujla Councillor Jason Baker
Councillor Simon Carswell Councillor Peter Clayton
Councillor Andy Hadley Councillor Pauline Ham
Councillor John Hunt Councillor Marcus Kravis
Councillor Martin Lovell Councillor Frances Nicholson
Councillor Jeny Snell Ruth Hobbs - co-opted member
The Revd Tobie Osmond - co-opted Eileen Tipper - co-opted member

Jo Simons - co-opted member

For further information about the meeting, including how to join the meeting virtually,
please contact Democratic Services on (01823) 357628 or email:
democraticservicesteam@somerset.gov.uk.

All members of the public are welcome to attend our meetings and ask questions or
make a statement by giving advance notice in writing or by e-mail to the Monitoring



Officer at email: democraticservicesteam@somerset.gov.uk by 5pm on Thursday, 4
January 2024.

This meeting will be open to the public and press, subject to the passing of any
resolution under the Local Government Act 1972, Schedule 12A: Access to Information.

The meeting will be webcast and an audio recording made.

Issued by (the Proper Officer) on Tuesday, 2 January 2024


mailto:democraticservicesteam@somerset.gov.uk

AGENDA

Scrutiny Committee - Children and Families
10.00 am Wednesday, 10 January 2024

Public Guidance Notes contained in Agenda Annexe (Pages 7 - 8)
Information about the Scrutiny Committee - Children & Families (Pages 9 - 10)

Details on how to join the meeting online (Pages 11 - 12)

1 Apologies for Absence

To receive any apologies for absence.

2 Declarations of Interest

To receive and note any declarations of interests in respect of any matters included
on the agenda for consideration at this meeting.

(The other registrable interests of Councillors of Somerset Council, arising from
membership of City, Town or Parish Councils and other Local Authorities will
automatically be recorded in the minutes: City, Town & Parish Twin Hatters -
Somerset Councillors 2023 )

3 Minutes from the meeting held on Tuesday 12 December 2023 (Pages 13 - 20)

To approve the minutes from the meeting held on Tuesday 12 December 2023.


https://democracy.somerset.gov.uk/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=City%20Town%20%20Parish%20Twin%20Hatters%20-%20Somerset%20Councill&ID=378&RPID=284137
https://democracy.somerset.gov.uk/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=City%20Town%20%20Parish%20Twin%20Hatters%20-%20Somerset%20Councill&ID=378&RPID=284137

Public Question Time

The Chair to advise the Committee of any items on which members of the public
have requested to speak and advise those members of the public present of the
details of the Council’s public participation scheme.

For those members of the public who have submitted any questions or statements,
please note, a three-minute time limit applies to each speaker and you will be asked
to speak before Councillors debate the issue.

We are now live webcasting most of our committee meetings and you are welcome
to view and listen to the discussion. The link to each webcast will be available on the
meeting webpage, please see details under ‘click here to join online meeting'.

Scrutiny Committee - Children and Families Work Programme (Pages 21 - 34)

To receive an update from the Service Manager, Governance Scrutiny. To assist the
discussion, the following documents are attached:-

(a) The Committee’s work programme
(b) The Committee’s outcome tracker

Please use the following links to view the latest Somerset Council Forward Plans and
Executive Forward Plan of planned key decisions that have been published on the
Council’s website:

Somerset Council Forward Plans
Somerset Council Executive Forward Plan

Sufficiency Strategy for children looked after and care leavers - 2023-28
(Pages 35 - 92)

The Sufficiency Strategy is attached and to consider PowerPoint presentation.

Note - the Chair will allow 30 minutes for this agenda item.


https://eur01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fdemocracy.somerset.gov.uk%2FmgPlansHome.aspx%3Fbcr%3D1&data=05%7C01%7Cfiona.abbott%40somerset.gov.uk%7Cc522c495bb0f4cac752108dbd963e014%7Cb524f606f77a4aa28da2fe70343b0cce%7C0%7C0%7C638342795233295139%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=s6GeRj6rVS7DIIIm4nRSyOHbp7jEfhjlp8zHYnngpnU%3D&reserved=0
https://eur01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fdemocracy.somerset.gov.uk%2FmgListPlans.aspx%3FRPId%3D213%26RD%3D0&data=05%7C01%7Cfiona.abbott%40somerset.gov.uk%7Cc522c495bb0f4cac752108dbd963e014%7Cb524f606f77a4aa28da2fe70343b0cce%7C0%7C0%7C638342795233295139%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=TIes5FsUcqy74Dx0CIJ0d%2FuddRYVAHnLSv7e%2FOH%2B9Kw%3D&reserved=0

10

2023/24 Children's Services - Budget Monitoring (Pages 93 - 102)
To consider PowerPoint presentation.

Note - the Chair will allow 30 minutes for this agenda item.

Update on short break provision (respite) (Pages 103 - 118)

To consider PowerPoint presentation.

Note - the Chair will allow 30 minutes for this agenda item.

Education Place Planning (Pages 119 - 140)

To consider PowerPoint presentation.

Note - The Chair will allow 40 minutes for this agenda item.

Items for Information - Standing Item

This is a standing agenda item and will provide details of information sent to
Committee members in between meetings, that cover the Committee’s policy areas.

(a) Housing related support and accommodation for 16 - 25-year-olds - update -
Key Decision
(The new service will go live in April 2024)

(b) C&YP December Bulletin - circulated on 19 December 2023

If Committee members have any questions or comments on the information, please
contact the Committee Administrator on democraticservicesteam@somerset.gov.uk
in the first instance and before the date of the meeting.


https://eur01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fdemocracy.somerset.gov.uk%2FieDecisionDetails.aspx%3FId%3D427&data=05%7C02%7Cfiona.abbott%40somerset.gov.uk%7C279f19aae9834de1e86c08dbfaf42e36%7Cb524f606f77a4aa28da2fe70343b0cce%7C0%7C0%7C638379698875271030%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=C6T2zsIq%2BFT1lNBUJDMqrlm3OG4C1IyX1wIquaMn%2BCw%3D&reserved=0

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Annex

Guidance notes for the meeting

Council Public Meetings

The legislation that governs Council meetings requires that committee meetings
are held face-to-face. The requirement is for members of the committee and key
supporting officers (report authors and statutory officers) to attend in person,
along with some provision for any public speakers. Provision will be made
wherever possible for those who do not need to attend in person including the
public and press who wish to view the meeting to be able to do so virtually.
Inspection of Papers

Any person wishing to inspect minutes, reports, or the background papers for any
item on the agenda should contact Democratic Services at
democraticservicesteam@somerset.gov.uk or telephone 81823 357628.

They can also be accessed via the council's website on Committee structure -
Modern Council (somerset.gov.uk)

Members' Code of Conduct requirements

When considering the declaration of interests and their actions as a councillor,
Members are reminded of the requirements of the Members' Code of Conduct
and the underpinning Principles of Public Life: Honesty; Integrity; Selflessness;
Objectivity; Accountability; Openness; Leadership. The Code of Conduct can be
viewed at: Code of Conduct

Minutes of the Meeting

Details of the issues discussed, and recommendations made at the meeting will
be set out in the minutes, which the Committee will be asked to approve as a
correct record at its next meeting.

Public Question Time

If you wish to speak or ask a question about any matter on the Committee's agenda
please contact Democratic Services by 5pm providing 3 clear working days before
the meeting. (for example, for a meeting being held on a Wednesday, the deadline
will be 5pm on the Thursday prior to the meeting) Email
democraticservicesteam@somerset.gov.uk or telephone 81823 357628.

Members of public wishing to speak or ask a question will need to attend in
person or if unable can submit their question or statement in writing for an
officer to read out, or alternatively can attend the meeting online.

A 20-minute time slot for Public Question Time is set aside near the beginning of
the meeting, after the minutes of the previous meeting have been agreed. Each
speaker will have 3 minutes to address the committee.

Page 7


mailto:democraticservicesteam@somerset.gov.uk
https://democracy.somerset.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1
https://democracy.somerset.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1
https://democracy.somerset.gov.uk/documents/s174/Part%20H2%20-%20Members%20Code%20of%20Conduct.pdf
mailto:democraticservicesteam@somerset.gov.uk

You must direct your questions and comments through the Chair. You may not take a
direct part in the debate. The Chair will decide when public participation is to finish.
If an item on the agenda is contentious, with many people wishing to attend the
meeting, a representative should be nominated to present the views of a group.

Meeting Etiquette for participants

Only speak when invited to do so by the Chair.

Mute your microphone when you are not talking.

Switch off video if you are not speaking.

Speak clearly (if you are not using video then please state your name)

If you're referring to a specific page, mention the page number.

There is a facility in Microsoft Teams under the ellipsis button called turn on live
captions which provides subtitles on the screen.

Exclusion of Press & Public

If when considering an item on the agenda, the Committee may consider it
appropriate to pass a resolution under Section IOOA (4) Schedule 12A of the
Local Government Act 1972 that the press and public be excluded from the
meeting on the basis that if they were present during the business to be
transacted there would be a likelihood of disclosure of exempt information, as
defined under the terms of the Act.

If there are members of the public and press listening to the open part of the
meeting, then the Democratic Services Officer will, at the appropriate time, ask
participants to leave the meeting when any exempt or confidential information is
about to be discussed.

Recording of meetings

The Council supports the principles of openness and transparency. It allows
filming, recording, and taking photographs at its meetings that are open to the
public - providing this is done in a non-disruptive manner. Members of the public
may use Facebook and Twitter or other forms of social media to report on
proceedings. No filming or recording may take place when the press and public
are excluded for that part of the meeting.

Page 8



Agenda Annex

Information about the Committee

This Scrutiny Committee covers the full range of functions covered by
the Lead Member for Children and Families. The key focus of the
Committee is to assist the Lead Member, the Executive, the Council and
its partners to improve the life chances of all children in Somerset
through effective and joined up approaches to the delivery of services.

The membership of the Committee includes 2 co-opted church
representatives, 2 co-opted parent governor representatives, 2 school
governor representatives and 1 representative from the Schools Forum.
These co-opted members have voting rights on education matters.

The Committee has a useful ‘glossary of terms’ document, and this can
be found on the website on the following link - Glossary of Terms

Page 9


https://democracy.somerset.gov.uk/documents/s2642/Scrutiny%20Committee%20-%20Children%20and%20Families%20-%20Glossary%20of%20Terms%20April%202023.pdf

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Annex

Scrutiny Committee - Children and Families
10 January 2024

Sedgemoor Room, Bridgwater House, King
Square, Bridgwater, TA6 3AR

To join the meeting via MS Teams, please see
below

Microsoft Teams meeting

Join on your computer, mobile app or room device

Click here to join the meeting

Meeting ID: 316 722 310 046
Passcode: yz6pzM

Download Teams | Join on the web

Or call in (audio only)

+44 1823 772277,572945970# United Kingdom, Taunton

Phone Conference ID: 572 945 970#

Find a local number | Reset PIN

N Somerset
¥ Council

Learn More | Meeting options

Page 11


https://eur01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/ap/t-59584e83/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fteams.microsoft.com%2Fl%2Fmeetup-join%2F19%253ameeting_Njk0ZDFmZDUtZTFjNi00ZmRlLWE2NWEtNTJiYmQ3ODNhY2Zk%2540thread.v2%2F0%3Fcontext%3D%257b%2522Tid%2522%253a%2522b524f606-f77a-4aa2-8da2-fe70343b0cce%2522%252c%2522Oid%2522%253a%2522be753587-8c25-44a0-8666-6f585f83d52c%2522%257d&data=05%7C01%7Cfiona.abbott%40somerset.gov.uk%7Ce058d80b1c4c4f608f0d08dbe9ab4964%7Cb524f606f77a4aa28da2fe70343b0cce%7C0%7C0%7C638360694120719566%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=8EjwoXu9pNozV9rcTHnz0aAS%2BID3A9FBDfz%2Fwusgn1Y%3D&reserved=0
https://eur01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.microsoft.com%2Fen-us%2Fmicrosoft-teams%2Fdownload-app&data=05%7C01%7Cfiona.abbott%40somerset.gov.uk%7Ce058d80b1c4c4f608f0d08dbe9ab4964%7Cb524f606f77a4aa28da2fe70343b0cce%7C0%7C0%7C638360694120719566%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=YfV7evDQnEe8ynV0NvD9p4tfzt3VGVMl90xgE9sw8b8%3D&reserved=0
https://eur01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.microsoft.com%2Fmicrosoft-teams%2Fjoin-a-meeting&data=05%7C01%7Cfiona.abbott%40somerset.gov.uk%7Ce058d80b1c4c4f608f0d08dbe9ab4964%7Cb524f606f77a4aa28da2fe70343b0cce%7C0%7C0%7C638360694120719566%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=PAPSmpZ2eoK9hKZ%2B8f6q7ELqkYegUFAxcBSM3rb5q84%3D&reserved=0
tel:+441823772277,,572945970
https://eur01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fdialin.teams.microsoft.com%2F4e217883-910c-4f2a-a890-19f4d750e93c%3Fid%3D572945970&data=05%7C01%7Cfiona.abbott%40somerset.gov.uk%7Ce058d80b1c4c4f608f0d08dbe9ab4964%7Cb524f606f77a4aa28da2fe70343b0cce%7C0%7C0%7C638360694120719566%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=XMWEJWXlA4QMZYljd3weqJgRuBcFBZYclaXhlxu66HI%3D&reserved=0
https://eur01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fdialin.teams.microsoft.com%2Fusp%2Fpstnconferencing&data=05%7C01%7Cfiona.abbott%40somerset.gov.uk%7Ce058d80b1c4c4f608f0d08dbe9ab4964%7Cb524f606f77a4aa28da2fe70343b0cce%7C0%7C0%7C638360694120875813%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=NlIAMBEXZWYQGJQRxKLuSTCKM875Kv5lP9bPx0wmf7w%3D&reserved=0
https://eur01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Faka.ms%2FJoinTeamsMeeting&data=05%7C01%7Cfiona.abbott%40somerset.gov.uk%7Ce058d80b1c4c4f608f0d08dbe9ab4964%7Cb524f606f77a4aa28da2fe70343b0cce%7C0%7C0%7C638360694120875813%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=n4brLoDIqihSz%2BdQtIZ6d3uHk3wH8bgU1OBvYhNAX94%3D&reserved=0
https://eur01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fteams.microsoft.com%2FmeetingOptions%2F%3ForganizerId%3Dbe753587-8c25-44a0-8666-6f585f83d52c%26tenantId%3Db524f606-f77a-4aa2-8da2-fe70343b0cce%26threadId%3D19_meeting_Njk0ZDFmZDUtZTFjNi00ZmRlLWE2NWEtNTJiYmQ3ODNhY2Zk%40thread.v2%26messageId%3D0%26language%3Den-US&data=05%7C01%7Cfiona.abbott%40somerset.gov.uk%7Ce058d80b1c4c4f608f0d08dbe9ab4964%7Cb524f606f77a4aa28da2fe70343b0cce%7C0%7C0%7C638360694120875813%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=zRaz9HJG08oQ0WaQ65I20DZARbId5PrlBb40OgC%2FpY8%3D&reserved=0

This page is intentionally left blank



Public Agenda Pack Agenda Item 3

W Somerset
¥ Council

Minutes of a Meeting of the Scrutiny Committee - Children and Families held in the
Council Chamber, Council Offices, Brympton Way, Yeovil BA20® 2HT, on Tuesday, 12

December 2023 at 10.00 am

Present:

Cllr Leigh Redman (Chair)
Cllr Evie Potts-Jones (Vice-Chair)

Cllr Suria Aujla

Cllr Simon Coles (sub for Clir C Ellis)
Cllr John Hunt - attended remotely
Cllr Frances Nicholson

The Revd Tobie Osmond - co-opted

In attendance:

Cllr Tessa Munt

Other Members present remotely:

Cllr Mandy Chilcott
Cllr Jo Roundell Greene

Cllr Simon Carswell
Cllr Andy Hadley

Cllr Martin Lovell

Ruth Hobbs - co-opted
Jo Simons - co-opted

Cllr Heather Shearer

Cllr Liz Leyshon

1 Apologies for Absence - Agenda Item 1

Apologies were received from Councillor C Ellis (substituted by Clir S Coles), Clir P
Clayton (no substitute), Cllr J Snell (no substitute) and Mrs E Tipper (co-opted member).

2 Declarations of Interest - Agenda Item 2

There were no new declarations of interest made at the meeting.

Ruth Hobbs referred to the declaration made at the meeting on 13 September 2023
re mediation with Somerset Council regarding child’s EHCP and advised that the
issue had been resolved, meaning the declaration can now be removed.

Page 13



Minutes of the Meeting held on 15 November 2023 - Agenda Item 3

Resolved that the minutes of the Scrutiny Committee - Childrens and Families held
on Wednesday 15 November 2023 be confirmed as a correct record.

Public Question Time - Agenda Item 4
There were no questions asked, statements made or petitions presented.
Scrutiny Committee - Children and Families Work Programme - Agenda Item 5

The Committee received and noted the current work plan and outcome tracker and
Executive Forward Plan.

A key area of focus will be the budget situation and the implications of the current
financial situation on Children’s Services - the Chair and Vice Chair will discuss and
meet with the relevant Executive members, to look at the best way members can
monitor and focus on this in more depth.

2023/24 Children's Services - Budget Monitoring - Agenda Item 6

The Committee received a presentation from Christian Evans, the Council’'s Head of
Business Partnering Finance and colleagues on 2023/24 Children’s Services budget
monitoring, the forecast outturn as at end September (month 6) and verbally
updated on the latest position, which is showing the position is worsening, mainly
due to situation around external placements.

The presentation focussed on home to school transport (mainstream and SEN), the
Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) and in particular the High Needs forecast deficit
position and the statutory override situation.

The Committee asked a number of questions and made a number of comments

which were responded to at the meeting, as follows:

e Trend in numbers of residential and unregistered placements (slide 8) and
budget last year in the 2 areas - the unregistered placement numbers have been
decreasing in the current financial year, driven largely by the Homes & Horizons
initiative - eventually there will be none in unregistered placements; residential
placement numbers have been increasing over this period, particularly in the
current calendar year, and more than was reasonable foreseen and budgeted for.
With regard to the budget last year in 2 areas - will come back on nhumbers.

Page 14


https://democracy.somerset.gov.uk/documents/s18865/Presentation.pdf

e Home to school transport (slide 10) - the Chair said that it is important for the
Committee to understand the difference between ‘mainstream home to school
transport’ and ‘SEND transport’ (statutory / non statutory elements) — noted that
for SEND transport, the key driver is cost, rather than the numbers involved. There
is more competition in the SEND transport (market) than in mainstream transport
(market). The delay in special schools coming on stream also has implications on
this and the budget. Also look at issues of mainstream / safe routes periodically
and are undertaking work in identifying where the most expensive settings are.

e Concern amongst upper tier authorities about the position re the DSG situation
referenced on slide 10 - the DSG is held in a ‘crystallised reserve’ which sits with
the DfE - also referred to the member briefing held in September which provided
more detail on the DSG.

It was noted that the Council is refreshing the DSG Deficit Management Plan and
this will be presented to the Scrutiny Committee early next year.

e Query about the Delivering Better Value / SEND programme work and its impact
moving forward - this programme is a DfE led programme which started in 2022
and proposal agreed April '23 - it is too early to say the difference being made by
the programme and should start to see impact in 24/25 financial year - the
Newton report has been previously shared with the Committee and the Schools
Forum and this will be recirculated for reference.

The Chair thanked the officers for their work and the Committee noted the update.

Education, Health and Care Assessment and Plan 2022-2023 - Progress
update - Agenda Item 7

The Chair welcomed Dr Rob Hart, the Council’s Service Director Inclusion and Claire
Merchant-Jones, the Council’'s Head of SEND for this item.

The Committee considered a report and received a presentation which provided a
progress update on special education needs & disabilities (SEND) - improvement
activity and education, health and care plans (EHCP), providing a summary of the
data, improvements, impact and ongoing challenges in relation to how the local area
has continued to respond to delivering EHCP’s across Somerset since the
reinspection of SEND services in November 2022.

The Accelerated Progress Plan was signed off by the DfE in May 2023, there are

monthly progress reports to the SEND Partnership Board, six-month reviews with DfE
and NHSE.

Page 15


https://democracy.somerset.gov.uk/documents/s18864/Report.pdf
https://democracy.somerset.gov.uk/documents/s21663/update%20presentation%20-%20agenda%20item%207.pdf

Dr Hart highlighted the following -

the key headline is the increase in numbers of plans and the number of annual
reviews - there has been a decrease in number of tribunals registered (slide 5).
the situation re-funding and placements and that following the recent education
funding consultation (presented to Scrutiny meeting in November ‘23) are
developing proposals to allocate more high needs funding to schools without
need for an EHCP and to make banding more equal between mainstream and
special school (slide 6).

the position re SEND in Somerset schools (slide 7) and since 2018 there has been
2.6% increase in total pupil numbers and 78% increase in pupils in specialist
settings.

the position re Annual Reviews / timeliness (slide 8) and referenced the LGCSO
decision (slide 9) - the link to the Ombudsman report will be shared with the
Committee.

performance against annual review timeliness will continue to challenge the LA as
the number of EHC plans it needs to maintain continues to grow.

The Committee asked a number of questions and made a number of comments
which were responded to at the meeting, as follows:

the number of EHC assessments refused, referred to in Table 3 of the report and
what happens - has been increase in the number of cases requesting
assessment - the majority of requests for assessment are from schools, rather
than from parents. Where the decision is taken to refuse to assess, they can
appeal and engage with the advisory teaching teams to work with the schools and
their families to identify how best to support the child / young person; an EHCP
should not be seen as ‘an end in itself’ and is - at best - a 20-week process; the
number of plans issued is detailed in Table 4 of the report; the decision can be
taken to assess and then not issue a plan - this is a small number and officers will
provide the information on this.

Questions about the increase in SEND in Somerset schools (slide 7) and number
of EHCP’s - the Chair asked Cllr Nicholson to send in her questions and so that
responses can be recorded.

Having more plans in place means needing to undertake more reviews - have
enough staff capacity to cope? - there is clear link with the education finance
consultation and the aim to have more SEN funding in schools so get the right
support without the need for an EHCP; annual review process highlighted and the
actions underway to support improvements in this area (detailed in paragraph 3.9
of the report); there was turnover of staff historically - mentioned support in place.
Do know why the number of requests are increasing? - situation is complex and
do not think there is a single reason - could perhaps be because of the new legal
framework; issues around funding; changes to curriculum and inspection regime

Page 16



in last 10 years; impact following the pandemic of children who have struggled to
engage in school; national problem and system is not working for all stakeholders
or achieving great outcomes for children & young people; the DfE is supporting
89 local authorities to help reduce the deficit.

The Chair thanked officers for the presentation and the Committee agreed:
1. To note the update on EHCPs and the ongoing challenges for teams across the
Council and wider partners.
2. To note the activities underway to support improvements:
e Annual Planning Meetings offered (and monitored) to every school across
Somerset to identify children requiring support from specialist LA teams.
e Clarify expectations with schools to ensure that appropriate advice and
support in advance of meeting.
e Notes the additional staff in place to process Annual Review reports in a
timely way.
e The scrutiny committee to receive an update in 6 months on impact / uptake
/ number of reviews completed and so on (KPIs & training).

Connect Somerset - Agenda Item 8

The Committee received a presentation on Connect Somerset from Richard Selwyn,
the Council’s Service Director Children’s Commissiong, together with Dave
MacCormick (Holyrood Academy Head Teacher) and Ingrid Edginton, Champion for
ASC & CSC Needs, Chard area.

Connect Somerset is about working together across public, voluntary, faith and
community sectors to improve the lives of families and residents and is a way of
delivering early help in the community, connecting / building on existing networks

with the aim of more efficient public sector delivery model.

Mr MacCormick and Ms Edginton outlined what is happening in the Chard area and
work undertaken to roll out the early help model to other areas.

The Committee asked a number of questions and made a number of comments

which were responded to at the meeting, as follows:

e Roll out in Langport and so on, huge patch - the focus this term has been around
Chard area, will then roll out early help model to other town - already made
connections with schools for example.

o Would be worth sharing the model / best practice examples so can cascade
across system - noted - it is a relational model and that will have different
approaches in different areas; have 12 amazing Champions / local leaders,

Page 17


https://democracy.somerset.gov.uk/documents/s21649/agenda%20item%208%20-%20presentation.pdf
https://democracy.somerset.gov.uk/documents/s18827/Blueprint%20for%20Connect%20Somerset.pdf
https://connectsomerset.org.uk/

helping to set up Connect Somerset in each neighbourhood and change the
culture in public services and so are community-orientated; team around the
school model, is a fundamental model, change demand; local hubs and resources
- work with what’s existing rather than setting up something new; universal offer
is a way of increasing volume of early help that is accessed particularly by the
most vulnerable families; highlighted the workstreams and timeline to 2030.
How plan to keep people involved / informed - communications are ramping up
and would encourage members to meet with their respective Connect Champions.
Are schools nervous about this being additional work for them (also suggested
the website name needs a rethink) - team around school model has been done
by others and is around relationships - Champions and Relationship Managers
and so on - it is relationship based and will take time and is the starting point;
also work around shared data / shared case management system.

Do the Champions areas align to the LCN boundaries - around working together
and how trying to proceed - 2 geographies essentially - NHS is around primary
care and there are 13 of those, co-terminus with the 12 champions’ areas - and
the LCN geographies (local democracy areas) - every Champion attends their
local LCN meeting.

The Committee thanked officers and the community leaders for attending the
meeting and noted and welcomed the update.

Children's Services Transformation Priorities 2023 - 2026 - Agenda Item 9

The Chair referred to the discussions at the last meeting of the Committee on the
Children’s transformation priorities and invited volunteers to focus on particular

strands of the transformation priorities, to allow individual meetings with officers to
gain a better understanding / learn more about one of the areas, as follows:

e Education for Life

e CLA Transformation
e SEND Strategy

e Connect Somerset

The following Committee members expressed an interest in the areas:-

e Education for Life - Jo Simons;

e CLA Transformation - Cllr E Potts-Jones, Cllr M Lovell;
e SEND Strategy - Clir S Carswell, Cllr F Nicholson;

e Connect Somerset - Tobie Osmond, Ruth Hobbs.

Noted.

Page 18


https://democracy.somerset.gov.uk/documents/s18828/Childrens%20Services%20Transformation%20Priority%20Slide.pdf
https://democracy.somerset.gov.uk/documents/s18828/Childrens%20Services%20Transformation%20Priority%20Slide.pdf

10 Items for Information - Standing Item - Agenda Item 10
There were no items for information considered at this meeting.

(The meeting ended at 1.15 pm)

CHAIR

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 20



T¢ obed

Scrutiny Committee - Children and Families Work Plan
2023 - 2024

Overarching Committee meeting dates / proposed agenda items Lead Officer/ltem Lead
themes

Outstanding items from 2022/ 2023
e School Transport policy / Post-16 Travel Policy and the ‘Somerset Ticket’
o Children missing out on education (numbers who, reasons)

o Workshop The dlsadvantage gap - what we know and optlons to address to include health impact of inequalities in education - Public
Health, SEND, social workers, case studies, wider health organisations, FSM and pupil premium data

J POSSIb|e workshop WIth Adults & Health Scrutmy Self harm / mental health issues — 10 January 24 meetrng — now 13 March ‘24 mtg

Items to be scheduled 2023/24
) Household Support Fund / schools (added 15/05/23) (is a Key DeC|S|on 23/05/23)

) School place suff|C|ency EY, Nursery places prlmary, secondary and speC|aI schools (added 27/06/23) — Decembermtg — now Jan
mtg

e Elective home education numbers (added 27/06/23) — March mtg

e Pupil referral unit (added 27/06/23)

e Councillor DBS checks (added 13/07/23)

e Provisional — joint with Adults and Health Scrutiny - Asylum Resettlement Programme following issues raised by groups working with
asylum seekers in the community in Somerset (added 01.08.23)

+—Connect-Somerset(added-15.11.23) — December-mig

e What are the implications of the current financial situation on Somerset children services? (added 20.11.23) — to be item early in new

year

Thursday 4 May 2023 @ 10am

Education LA Maintained Schools Core Offer — update / response from last meeting and Amelia Walker
Partnerships & 2023/24 budgets

Skills

The focus for the Committee is — what impact does this have on the children in Somerset?

G wa)| epuaby


https://democracy.somerset.gov.uk/documents/s6759/Household%20Support%20Fund%20May%202023%20Key%20Decision.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/oral-health-survey-of-5-year-old-children-2022

z¢ obed

Scrutiny Committee - Children and Families Work Plan

2023 - 2024

Overarching Committee meeting dates / proposed agenda items Lead Officer/ltem Lead

themes

Education Terms of reference of the proposed Task Group on education standards Amelia Walker

Partnerships &

Skills

Inclusion SEND Strategy and the Accelerated Progress Plan (APP) Dr Rob Hart and Andrew Keefe, Deputy
Director for Commissioning, NHS
Somerset

Social Care Reforms in children’s social care — draft consultation response Paul Shallcross, AD Community &
Strategy

Children & Task and Finish Group — sufficiency of external placements — initial response Clir Munt / Claire Winter

Families from Executive

Inclusion Task and Finish Group — home to school transport — verbal update Dr Rob Hart

Cross-cutting

Items for Information — Standing Item
(a) Information on Children and Families Board
(b) Feedback on the ‘Education for Life’ launch event

Wednesday 12 July 2023 @ 10am

Cross-cutting

Budget outturn position 22/23 and issues 23/24 - overview

Claire Winter, Executive Director of
Children, Families and Education
Sian Kenny, Strategic Manager,
Finance

Education
Partnerships &
Skills

Academisation / Education Finance

Amelia Walker, Service Director
Education Partnerships and Skills

Commissioning

Update on Homes & Horizons Partnership

Daniel Moncrieff, Strategic Manager

Inclusion Children’s Mental Health and Wellbeing in Somerset Dr Tim Cockerill, Patsy Temple, Mark
Conway, Patrick Worthington, Nik
Harwood and Lisa Walker

Inclusion Home to School Transport Task and Finish Group — interim update Executive member / Service Director —
Inclusion, Dr Rob Hart

Children & Somerset Youth Justice Partnership Board Annual Plan Jayne Shelbourne-Barrow,

Families Helen MacDonald, Operations

Manager

Cross-cutting

Items for Information — Standing Item

The focus for the Committee is — what impact does this have on the children in Somerset?



https://www.somerset.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/education-for-life-strategy/

ez abed

Scrutiny Committee - Children and Families Work Plan

2023 - 2024

Overarching
themes

Committee meeting dates / proposed agenda items

Lead Officer/ltem Lead

(a) Centre for Governance and Scrutiny (CfGS) publication — Scrutiny of
Children’s Services — a short guide

(b) Homes and Horizons partnership

(c) Progress update on Ofsted Action Plan; Life Story work’

(d) Children’s Services — current structure chart

Cathy Jones, Strategic Manager

Commissioning

Communities Scrutiny Committee — 9 August 23 @ 10am

Members of the Children & Families Scrutiny Committee invited to attend the
meeting for this item:-

e Recommissioning of 16+ housing / supported accommodation
(initially added to work plan on 17/05/23)

Richard Selwyn, Service Director
Children’s Commissioning

Wednesday 13 September 2023 @ 10 am
The Luttrell Room, County Hall, Taunton

Cross-cutting

2023/24 Children’s Services — Budget Monitoring

Sian Kenny, Strategic Manager,
Finance

Education
Partnerships &
Skills

Education Modelling - Frome — next steps

Amelia Walker, Service Director
Education Partnerships and Skills

Phil Curd, Strategic Manager
presenting

Regional Adoption Agency
Report

Claire Winter, Executive Director of
Children, Families and Education

External Placements Task and Finish Group — response from Executive on
recommendations made by the Task and Finish Group

Executive member / Claire Winter,
Executive Director of Children, Families
and Education

Education
Partnerships &

Skills

Learning from the West Somerset Opportunity Area

Julia Ridge, Strategic Manager

The focus for the Committee is — what impact does this have on the children in Somerset?


https://www.cfgs.org.uk/?publication=scrutiny-of-childrens-services-a-short-guide
https://www.cfgs.org.uk/?publication=scrutiny-of-childrens-services-a-short-guide
https://www.shawtrust.org.uk/homes-and-horizons/
https://democracy.somerset.gov.uk/documents/s11771/Housing%20related%20support%20and%20accommodation%20for%2016-25%20year%20olds%20-%20Presentation%20to%20Scrutiny%20-%20August%2020.pdf

vz abed

Scrutiny Committee - Children and Families Work Plan

2023 - 2024

Overarching
themes
Cross cutting

Committee meeting dates / proposed agenda items

Items for Information

(a) Education Data

Additional mtg - 25 October 2023 @ 10am — Joint with Adults & Health Committee
JMR, Deane House, Belvedere Road, Taunton, TA1 1HE

NHS Dentistry and Children & Young people’s access to Dentistry / child
oral health improvement

Cross cutting

Cross cutting Approach to reducing youth vaping

Cross cutting Transitions arrangements — preparing for adulthood

15 November 2023 @ 10 am
Sedgemoor Room, Bridgwater House, King Square, Bridgwater, TA6 3AR
Cross cutting 2023/24 Children’s Services — Budget Monitoring

Commissioning Update on Children’s Transformation Programme / Business Plan

Lead Officer/ltem Lead

Amelia Walker, Service Director
Education Partnerships and Skills — to
be circulated

Sukeina Kassam, Deputy Director
Primary Care and Matthew Mills, Head
of Pharmacy, Optometry and Dentistry

Rachel Handley, Consultant in Public
Health

Kate Anderson, Service Manager,
Public Health

Rachel Handley, Consultant in Public
Health

Emily Fulbrook, Acting Deputy Director,
Adults & Health Operations and Jayne
Shelbourn-Barrow, Service Director for
Children and Families

Sian Kenny, Strategic Manager,
Finance

Claire Winter, Executive Director of
Children, Families and Education
Caroline Barnes, Service Manager

The focus for the Committee is — what impact does this have on the children in Somerset?



Gz abed

Overarching
themes
Education
Partnerships &
Skills
Education
Partnerships &
Skills

Cross cutting

Scrutiny Committee - Children and Families Work Plan

2023 - 2024

Committee meeting dates / proposed agenda items

Education finance — consultation

Standing Panel for Education Standards — update from Chair of Panel

Items for information — Standing Item:

(a) SSCP Learning Bulletin - September 2023 — circulated on 20
September 2023

(b) Children & Young People LGA bulletin — September 2023 — circulated
in 28 September 2023

(c) Link to the consultation on ‘creating a smoke free generation and
tackling youth vaping’, which runs to 6 December - Creating a
smokefree generation and tackling youth vaping: your views -
Department of Health and Social Care (dhsc.gov.uk) — circulated on 30
October 2023

(d) Link to NHS dental statistics for England 2022-23, Annual Report -
circulated on 30 October 2023

(e) Information on the Education Finance consultation — circulated on 1
November 2023

(f) LA maintained schools core offer — update — circulated on 6 November
2023

Scrutiny Committee — Adults and Health — 7 December @ 10 am

Members of the Children & Families Scrutiny Committee invited to attend the
meeting for this item:-

e Overview of Crime & Disorder (added 22.08.23)

Additional meeting — Tuesday 12 December 2023 @ 10am
Venue — Council Chamber, Brympton Way, Yeovil

2023/24 Children’s Services — Budget Monitoring

Lead Officer/ltem Lead

Amelia Walker, Service Director
Education Partnerships and Skills

Clir Evie Potts-Jones

Sian Kenny, Strategic Manager,
Finance

The focus for the Committee is — what impact does this have on the children in Somerset?


https://consultations.dhsc.gov.uk/en/65201ed1f3410a69990d3081
https://consultations.dhsc.gov.uk/en/65201ed1f3410a69990d3081
https://consultations.dhsc.gov.uk/en/65201ed1f3410a69990d3081
https://digital.nhs.uk/data-and-information/publications/statistical/nhs-dental-statistics/2022-23-annual-report

9z abed

Scrutiny Committee - Children and Families Work Plan

To include ‘SEND system’ update and an update on EHCP process and
timeliness and information on ‘bandings’

2023 - 2024
Overarching Committee meeting dates / proposed agenda items Lead Officer/ltem Lead
themes
Inclusion Progress update on SEND Strategy / APP Dr Rob Hart ,Service Director -

Inclusion

Cross-cutting

Connect Somerset

Richard Selwyn
Service Director Children’s
Commissioning

Wednesday 10 Jan

Ve

nue - Sedgemoo

uary 2024 @ 10am
r Room, Bridgwater House, King Square, Bridgwater, TA6 3AR

Commissioning

CLA Sufficiency Strategy

Richard Selwyn

Service Director Children’s
Commissioning

Julie Breeze, Strategic
Commissioner

Cross cutting

2023/24 Children’s Services — Budget Monitoring

Christian Evans, Head of Business
Partnering

Children &
Families

Update on short break provision (respite)

Jayne Shelbourn-Barrow, Service
Director Children & Families
Louise Palmer, Strategic
Commissioner,

Jo Manning, Head of Service, CLA
Leaving Care

Education
Partnerships &
Skills

Education Place Planning

Phil Curd, Head of Education
Places

Information Items:
(a) Housing related support and accommodation for 16 — 25 year olds —

update — Key Decision
The new service will go live in April 2024

Richard Selwyn, Service Director
Children’s Commissioning

The focus for the Committee is — what impact does this have on the children in Somerset?



https://democracy.somerset.gov.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?Id=427

Scrutiny Committee - Children and Families Work Plan
2023 - 2024

Overarching Committee meeting dates / proposed agenda items Lead Officer/ltem Lead
themes

(b) C&YP December Bulletin — circulated on 19 December 2023

To note that MTFP will be on the agenda for the Scrutiny Committee - Corporate and
Resources meeting scheduled for 1 February 2024 and all scrutiny members will be invited to
attend the meeting. Implications / issues for this committee can be brought to following

meeting.

Wednesday 13 March 2024 @ 10am
JMR, Deane House, Belvedere Road, Taunton, TA1 1HE

Inclusion Children’s Mental Health and Wellbeing in Somerset Dr Tim Cockerill, Patsy Temple and
Focus self-harm - members of the Adults & Health Committee be NHS colleagues

invited to attend meeting

Cross cutting DSG Deficit Management Plan (DMP)

Inclusion Elective Home Education Dr Rob Hart, Service Director
Inclusion

/¢ abed

Future meeting dates

e Wednesday 15 May 2024 @ 10am

The focus for the Committee is — what impact does this have on the children in Somerset?



gz abed

Scrutiny Committee - Children and Families Work Plan
2023 - 2024

Universal Education

Pupil place planning

e Disadvantage gap

e Academisation

¢ LA maintained capacity and support

SEND and Inclusion
e Attendance
e Accelerated Progress Plan (Joint Local Area SEND Inspection)
e SEND & Alternative Provision
e SEND Strategy

Social Care and Commissioning
e Family safeguarding
e Early Help
e Placement sufficiency
- Strategic partnership
- The Care Review

Cross-cutting items:
e Long-term financial planning that improves outcomes for children (MTP)
e Involving young people and the community in scrutiny
e Mental health and emotional wellbeing (with health partners)
e Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) — Children & Families Budgets

Note: Members of the Scrutiny Committee and all other Members of Somerset County Council are invited to contribute items for inclusion in the work
programme. Please contact Democratic Services (01823) 357628 & democraticservicesteam@somerset.gov.uk who will assist you in submitting your
item.

The focus for the Committee is — what impact does this have on the children in Somerset?


mailto:democraticservicesteam@somerset.gov.uk

62 abed

Scrutiny Committee - Children & Families Outcome Tracker

2023 - 24
Agenda items Lead / Agreed Outcome RAG Status
Owner
12 July 2023
Children’s Mental |Dr Tim Cockerill [Detailed Presentation received, which included an update on the Trauma Informed progress
Health and and colleagues  [Somerset practice model and implementation. update in 6
Wellbeing in months’ time
Somerset Details on Regional Summit in autumn to be shared with Committee.
Noted position re recruitment of coordinator and the system wide trauma informed January '24 -
training offer. changed to
March 24
13 September 2023
2023/24 Children's [Sian Kenny The Committee received a presentation on the 23/24 Children’s Services budget as at [On going
Services - Budget the end of July 2023 (Month 4).
Monitoring
Actions:
(a) Home to School Transport review be circulated asap. Done - FA

(b) EHCP’s — paper be circulated explain how they come about, process, numbers

(c) Next budget report needs to include table showing current budget position and
also more detail on ‘risks’ to help the Committee delve deeper.

(d) IMPOWER early intervention and support / diagnostic review — paper be
circulated providing more detail / information

Will share Sufficiency Strategy at future meeting - item on CLA commissioning
(outline challenges and programme to improve outcomes and sufficiency) — Jan

mtg

Rob Hart (Dec
mtg)

Sian Kenny

Richard Selwyn

Joint meeting with Adults and Health Scrutiny on 25 October 2023

The focus for the Committee is - ‘what impact does this have on the children in Somerset’?



https://democracy.somerset.gov.uk/documents/s10738/PowerPoint%20presentation.pdf
https://democracy.somerset.gov.uk/documents/b21211/Agenda%20supplement%204%20-%20Budget%20-%20presentation%20given%20at%20meeting%20agenda%20item%206%2013th-Sep-2023%2010.00%20S.pdf?T=9

0€ obed

Scrutiny Committee - Children & Families Outcome Tracker

2023 - 24

Dentistry and
children and young
people's access to
dentistry and child
oral health
improvement

NHS Somerset /
ICB and Public
Health

The Committee received a presentation from NHS Somerset on the provision of NHS
Dental Services in Somerset, and a position statement on child oral health
improvement, provided by Public Health.

The Chair requested (a) a briefing be provided to cover the questions raised during
discussions, around early years, sign-posting, primary care recovery plan, route for
queries to be funneled; noted that service is creating a webinar (across the SW region);
(b) an update to the Committee on issues raised in 4 — 6 months.

Link to NHS dental statistical data information

The Committee welcomed and noted the update.

Update to a
Joint mtg or
Adults & Health
cttee

Somerset approach
to reducing
ismoking and youth
vaping

Kate Anderson
Rachel Handley

The Committee received a presentation from Public Health Team and engaged in
discussions and debate of the points raised. The presentation raised several important
and informative points.

The Committee agreed a recommendation that they wished to present to The
Executive and unanimously agreed would write to the Executive in relation to electronic
cigarettes, as follows:-

1. The Committee asked that the current government consultation (link to the
consultation Creating a smokefree generation and tackling youth vaping: your
views - Department of Health and Social Care (dhsc.gov.uk) be shared with all
members who are encouraged to complete and promote locally in their
divisions. The consultation runs to 6 December.

2. The Committee asked that Licensing committee be asked to review and action
stronger enforcement of the sale of these devices in line with the current legal
position.

3. The Committee asked that the ‘Quit tool not cool tool’ slogan, as highlighted by
the presentation be supported and promoted in the council.

4. The Committee requested that Council take a position with regard to seeking
government to work at increasing legislation around electronic cigarettes, that
included but not conclusive:- a ban of the use of single use devices with
exception of use to support stopping smoking, a ban on child targeting
(advertising and packaging), an introduction of plain packaging that would
include a health warning, an introduction of an increasing age ban on sales of

these devices in line with the change made to cigarette sales.

On going

15 November 2023

The focus for the Committee is - ‘what impact does this have on the children in Somerset’?



democracy.somerset.gov.uk/documents/b21378/Supplementary%20Agenda%20Pack%202%20-%20agenda%20item%204%20Dental%20Services%20in%20Somerset%2025th-Oct-2023%2010.00%20Scru.pdf?T=9
https://digital.nhs.uk/data-and-information/publications/statistical/nhs-dental-statistics/2022-23-annual-report
https://democracy.somerset.gov.uk/documents/s15790/PowerPoint%20presentation.pdf
https://consultations.dhsc.gov.uk/en/65201ed1f3410a69990d3081
https://consultations.dhsc.gov.uk/en/65201ed1f3410a69990d3081

T¢ obed

Scrutiny Committee - Children & Families Outcome Tracker

Services - Budget
Monitoring

monitoring, the forecast outturn as at end September (month 6) and verbally updated
on the latest position, which is showing the position is worsening, mainly due to
situation around external placements.

The presentation focussed on home to school transport (mainstream and SEN), DSG
and in particular the High Needs forecast deficit position and the statutory override
situation.

Noted that the Council is refreshing the DSG Deficit Management Plan and this will be
presented to the Scrutiny Committee early next year. Reference made to the DBV /
SEND programme work - the Newton report has been previously shared with the
Committee and this will be recirculated for reference.

2023 - 24

2023/24 Children's [Sian Kenny The Committee received a presentation on the 23/24 Children’s Services budget and a |On going
Services - Budget verbal update on the month 6 position, which is showing a slight increase in forecast
Monitoring overspend (£11.8m to £12.4m).

A key area of deficit is the DSG, High Needs Block and will include more detail on this

and the 2 areas overspending in the next update to the Committee.
12 December 2023
2023/24 Children's [Christian Evans [The Committee received a presentation on 2023/24 Children’s Services budget On-going

To March mtg

Education, Health
and Care
Assessment and
Plan 2022-2023 -
Progress update

Dr Rob Hart

The Committee considered a report and received a presentation providing a progress
update on Special education needs & disabilities (SEND) — improvement activity and
Education, health and care plans (EHCP), providing a summary of the data,
improvements, impact and ongoing challenges in relation to how the local area has
continued to respond to delivering EHCP’s across Somerset since the reinspection of
SEND services in November 2022. The Accelerated Progress Plan was signed off by
the DfE in May 2023, there are monthly progress reports to the SEND Partnership
Board, six-month reviews with DfE and NHSE.

progress
update in 6
months’ time

The key headline is increase in numbers of plans and the number of annual reviews —
there has been a decrease in number of tribunals registered (slide 5). Highlighted the
situation re funding and placements and that following the recent funding consultation
(presented to Scrutiny meeting in November ‘23) are developing proposals to allocate
more high needs funding to schools without need for an EHCP and to make banding
more equal between mainstream and special school (slide 6).

The focus for the Committee is - ‘what impact does this have on the children in Somerset’?



https://democracy.somerset.gov.uk/documents/s18865/Presentation.pdf
https://democracy.somerset.gov.uk/documents/s18864/Report.pdf
https://democracy.somerset.gov.uk/documents/s21663/update%20presentation%20-%20agenda%20item%207.pdf

Z2< abed

Scrutiny Committee - Children & Families Outcome Tracker

2023 - 24

Highlighted position re SEND in Somerset schools (slide 7) and since 2018 there has
been 2.6% increase in total pupil numbers and 78% increase in pupils in specialist
settings.

Highlighted position re Annual Reviews / timeliness (slide 8) and referenced the
LGCSO decision (slide 9). Performance against annual review timeliness will continue
to challenge the LA as the number of EHC plans it needs to maintain continues to
grow. The link to the Ombudsman report will be shared with the Committee.

The Committee agreed:
1. To note the update on EHCPs and the ongoing challenges for teams across the
Council and wider partners.
2. To note the activities underway to support improvements:
* Annual Planning Meetings offered (and monitored) to every school across
Somerset to identify children requiring support from specialist LA teams.
» Clarify expectations with schools to ensure that appropriate advice and support
in advance of meeting.
* Notes the additional staff in place to process Annual Review reports in a timely
way.
» The scrutiny committee to receive an update in 6 months on impact / uptake /
number of reviews completed and so on (KPIs & training).

Connect Somerset

Richard Selwyn

The Committee received a presentation on Connect Somerset — which is a way of
delivering early help in the community. Connect Somerset is all about professionals
and community groups working together in partnership to help families and residents to
improve their lives.

Noted it is a relational model - Members were encouraged to meet their respective
Connect Champions — it was noted that they attend the local LCN’s meetings.

The Committee thanked officers and the community leaders for attending the meeting

completed

and noted the update.

The focus for the Committee is - ‘what impact does this have on the children in Somerset’?



https://democracy.somerset.gov.uk/documents/s21649/agenda%20item%208%20-%20presentation.pdf
https://democracy.somerset.gov.uk/documents/s18827/Blueprint%20for%20Connect%20Somerset.pdf

Scrutiny Committee - Children & Families Outcome Tracker

2023 - 24
Children's Services The Chair referred to the discussions at the last meeting of the Committee on the On-going
Transformation Children’s transformation priorities and invited volunteers t to focus on particular
Priorities 2023 - strands of the transformation priorities, to allow individual meetings with officers to gain
2026 a better understanding / learn more about one of the areas, as follows:

Education for life
CLA Transformation
SEND Strategy
Connect Somerset

The following Committee members expressed an interest in the areas:-
e Education for Life — Jo Simons;

e CLA Transformation — Clir E Potts-Jones, Clir M Lovell;

e SEND Strategy — Clir S Carswell, ClIr F Nicholson;

e Connect Somerset — Tobie Osmond, Ruth Hobbs.

The CYPP 2022 - 2025 had been produced following a multi-agency process. The CYPP had three priorities: keeping children and young
people safe (priority 1); supporting physical and emotional health and resilience (priority 2); enabling young people to learn and thrive
(priority 3)

Somerset Children & Young People’s Plan — SSCP (safeguardingsomerset.org.uk)

e¢ abed

Completed Action complete and will be removed from tracker for next meeting

Pending Action on-going or plans in place to address.

_ No action currently in place with a minimum of 3 months since action agreed.

The focus for the Committee is - ‘what impact does this have on the children in Somerset’?


https://sscb.safeguardingsomerset.org.uk/somerset-children-young-peoples-plan/
https://democracy.somerset.gov.uk/documents/s18828/Childrens%20Services%20Transformation%20Priority%20Slide.pdf
https://democracy.somerset.gov.uk/documents/s18828/Childrens%20Services%20Transformation%20Priority%20Slide.pdf

This page is intentionally left blank



Sufficiency Strategy for
children looked after and
care leavers — 2023-28

Julie Breeze
Strategic Commissioner
Children in Care

N Somerset
¥ Council

>
Q
%)
S
o
D
=
)
3
o)




Children’s

Services il &

Transformation 0 S 25 B

Priorities Qemre = gk

2023-2026 Education forlLife
1. Best Start in Life — quality

Sufficiency

Ef<iciency

Managerisk

pre-school places for 0-5 years
Whole school focus — raise
attainment for all pupils
Increase attendance &
reduce exclusions — identify
children at risk and build
effective Team around the
School model

School places — reduce
pressures in Bridgwater and
Taunton

School transport — support
children to attend their local
school and improve value for
money

Improved early years access
& engagement

Improved school attendance
Improved take up of post 16
education and training
Reduced exclusions

Improved attainment
Improved staff recruitment &
retention

Improved school transport
value for money

CLA Transformation

(D somsreet

Sufficiency Strategy for

nnnnnnnnn
2023 - 2028

Homes & Horizons — 8o 10
homes, pods and annexes
Fostering improvement —
recruitment, retention and
support for Foster Carers
Re-commissioning 16+ —
support for independence for
young people at risk of
homelessness
Edge of care support
Intelligence and control —
better data to plan & manage
Shape and manage the
market — increase sufficiency
Regional commissioning

More local foster carers for
Somerset children looked after
(CLA)

More children in residential
care live in Somerset

Better value for money through
good quality local provision

Fewer children coming into
care

D ey

SEND Strategy

Working together to help
children achieve what matters
to them

Getting help as early as
possible so that families can
access the right support at the
right time

Access the right information,
support and provision
Preparing for the future —
gaining the right skills to
achieve ambitions and prepare
for adulthood

Enhanced learning provisions
enable mainstream schools to
offer more inclusive provision
Providing more specialist
places for children with SEMH
needs

Fewer children with SEND
excluded from school

Family feedback evidences a
more positive experience
More young people supported
into training and employment

Blueprint for
Connect Somerset

Less demand for statutory
services because families are
more resilient

Integrated neighbourhood
teams — more efficient shared
estate, process, management
More efficient delivery and
increased take up of early help
Increase delivery of digital and
hybrid support

Target help to those most in
need — proactive offer



Sufficiency means ensuring we have enough high quality

homes for our children in care and care leavers

« More than calculating the number of beds
 Providing a range of options to meet

different needs which often change I e astatutory

duty under section 22G of the

. ¥Vorking closely with external providers and Children Act 1989 to take
%haplng the market steps that secure sufficient

« &enerating new ideas and developments accommodation for children
that are sustainable and cost effective and young people in care:

. pltlmately it's about prowdlng.a pathway to L e
independence for all of our children in care ) A ErER e
and care leavers ST BT

* Preventing children coming into care is capable of meeting
crucial different needs

« Will publish an annual sufficiency statement
to show progress



Our vision

e Better support children at risk of coming into care,
before they come into care

-U . e ®§® . RESTRICTED - COMMERCIAL
eglncrease the number of homes for children, especially | ¢y somerset
3fOSter care Sufficiency Strategy for
. . . . . Children Looked After
e Design our in-house fostering, residential care and and Care Leavers

2023 - 2028

supported accommodation so we support the most
complex needs

e Improve choice and match homes to children,
significantly reducing out of county places

e Reduce costs so we are within budget




National context and challenges in meeting the

sufficiency duty

The number of CLA has been rising steadily across England, from 69,470 in 2015 to 80,080 in 2020.
This figure is expected to rise to 95,000 by 2025
CIPFA trends in children’s services spending found that local authorities spent £11.1 billion on
Children’s Social Care in 2021/22, a 41% rise compared to 2009
B\ 2021 the Competition and Markets Authority (CMA) launched a market study in response to lack
@f supply of placements and high costs. The findings:
S A lack of placements of the right kind in the right places

« The largest private providers are making higher profits — dysfunctional market

« Some of the largest private providers are carrying very high levels of debt
Providers are struggling to match children with increasingly complex needs
Ofsted have introduced new quality standards for providers of supported accommodation - Data
gathered by Newton Europe indicates that the increase in unit cost is likely to be 15-30%
Recruitment of foster carers and residential care workers is a national challenge
Mandatory participation in the National Transfer Scheme has significantly increased the population
of unaccompanied asylum seeking children in Somerset



Somerset context — challenges

Increasing number of older children in the care system
A lack of foster carers to meet the needs of children in Somerset
An ageing population of foster carers
. gkecruitment and retention of carers and Registered Managers in children’s residential homes

#An increase in children who require specialist provision that can support complex needs
A lack of secure children’s homes nationally, resulting in the need for alternative placements;

Private providers having more power and ability to choose the children they take, resulting in local
authorities having little or no choice

Local provision is open to all
Increase in unregistered / illegal placements
Rising numbers of unaccompanied asylum seeking children (UASC)

Lack of move-on accommodation for young people leaving supported accommodation
Number of children in care not in education



Children ’
Looked After

Outcomes
Transformation

Benefits
« Significant savings in
23/24, 24/25 & 25/26
« Cost controls
« Better data
. ore carers
« wMatching homes to
%children with choice
« ~More children stay
"in county
«  Better market
relationships

Homes & Horizons ?Fostering
Improvement

Loving homes for
most complex
needs

8 to 10 homes
Therapeutic
education
Annexes and pods

Intelligence and

Control

New MS Bl
dashboard
Redesign invoice
process

Test Valuing Care
to improve
matching

Recruit and retain
more foster carers
Support carers for
higher complexity
Better matching
Funding follows
child

Workforce
development

¥ Inflation
Negotiations

Annual
conversation with
markets
Intelligence to
inform
commissioning

C4

Ny Re-commissioning
16+

Procurement
includes P2l and
complex spot
purchasing
Implementation
for April 24 launch
Partnership model
Review UASC
costs

Shape and Manage
the Market

Reduce exposure
to profiteering
Build more
Support small
local providers
Social capital
investment

/.

4

E

dge of Care

Support

€

egional
Commissioning

Family Group
Conferences
focused on CLA
Family
Safeguarding pilot
in FIS

CLA in education
Testing targeted
analytics

Develop Peninsula
commissioning
Regional Care
Cooperatives for
fostering and
residential care




What does sufficiency look like in Somerset

Providers operating in Somerset
e 17 residential providers
e 2 Independent Fostering Agencies

. "‘%5 supported accommodation providers

jab)
Q

®
COI‘RI’T\ISSIOI‘IIng arrangements currently In place

Description

No of providers

No of beds
(sourced from Ofsted list)

25 year olds (children’s social care and housing)

Homes and Horizons strategic partnership 1 Currently 14
Peninsula fostering framework (Somerset, Devon, Plymouth, Torbay) | 11 EStlm?ted 2273
(location not known)
: : : 75 beds within Peninsula
Peninsula residential framework 14 82 beds outside of Peninsula
Housing related support and accommodation block contract for 16- 5 100 Children’s social care

90 Housing

16+ Dynamic Purchasing System (DPS)

In place for April 2024

TBC




Time for Questions




This page is intentionally left blank



N Somerset
N¢ Council

Sufficiency Strategy for
Children Looked After
and Care Leavers

2023 - 2028




Contents

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

6.0

7.0

8.0

9.0

10.0

11.0

12.0

EXecutive SUMMArY ......ooiiiiii s s 3
Introduction and PUIPOSE ........ccoiiiiiiiiiiiiari s s s s s s e s 8
Lo 31 =« N 10
Summary of the needs of children on the edge of care ............cc.ccciieinieniis 16
Summary of the needs of children looked after ..............c.cccciiiiiiiiiiiiiinnnnns 22
Summary of the needs of care leavers ...........c.ccooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii 31

What children looked after and care leavers tell us? ............cocoeviiiiiiiinnnn. 34
Working in partnership with providers ...........cccoiiiiiiiiir e 38
How are we meeting the needs of children on the edge of care ................... 39

How are we meeting the needs of children looked after and care leavers .....42
Analysis of external placement spend ..........cccoiiiiiiiiiiiiici 46

Governance and NexXt StePS......cciiiiiiii i 47

Version 1, December 2023



1.0 Executive Summary

There is nothing more important in a top-tier local authority, than our responsibility as
corporate parents.

Many of the children and young people we support have suffered unimaginable
trauma. Through our internal services and external partners, we offer these children
and young people a safe and loving home to help turn their lives around. It's always
best for children to stay with their family where is safe to do so, and we work hard to
reunite families where possible.

Our services and partners achieve amazing things...

Before Homes R o s e ’ =:m::.:"sd

& Horizons

« 4.5 months on a paediatric

ward, and 1 month on a ) _ _ _ o
CAMHS ward « Joint working with CAMHS and Homesz2Inspire, sharing risk

« Unregistered provision broke management across the home;
downlafict the second « Robust, nurturing support from the staff team to support Rose
& self-harm event around good eating and exercise routines;
« Support from a tutor to engage Rose
back into education;
« And, most importantly: a stable and
loving home environment;

Initially, similar challenges were faced in Rose's Homes & Horizons
home, however, after:

L

Rose has now seen considerable positive developments: her self
harm has significantly reduced, reintegration into a mainstream
school began in September, and Rose has stated that she sees the
Homes & Horizons home as her home, which she wants to stay at.

All our staff work tirelessly in assessing, supporting, commissioning and delivering
loving homes — that offer the best outcomes and are cost-effective for Somerset
Council. This sufficiency strategy which covers 2023 to 2028 is about us doing even
better and delivering within our budget.

A big thank you to everyone committed to making these changes.

ANV ) — )

J{c/ /%x_/ ~ 'P-f:":l"*-u‘qb,_mm.u j}ﬂm
Richard Selwyn Jayne Shelbourn-Barrow
Service Director Children’s Commissioning Service Director Children & Families

Page 47



1.1 Somerset Children and Young People

As of September 2023, there were 565 children in care in Somerset. As a
percentage of our population, this is significantly lower than most other local areas,
but also means those in care often have higher levels of complexity.

Children and young people come into care for the following reasons:

e 16% following a relationship breakdown

e 23% due to neglect, and

e 49% had concerns relating to parental mental ill health, domestic violence or
substance misuse.

The first five young people moving into our Homes and Horizons strategic
partnership had Deprivation of Liberty Orders which are authorised by the courts
when the young person poses significant risk to themselves or other.

The age profile of children and young people coming into care has remained broadly
the same with 0-2 year olds being the highest number, followed by 16-17 year olds.
For children coming into care over the age of 10 years, it has become increasingly
difficult to find a family home that is able to support the range of needs that they
present with. The trauma experienced by our children prior to them coming into care
can present itself in challenging behaviours, dysregulation, physical aggression, poor
emotional and mental health and self-harm.

38% of our children in care are living outside of Somerset, and not able to remain
close to their family and support networks. The number of children out of county has
risen significantly in the last ten years because we do not have enough sufficiency of
homes in Somerset. The following table shows the current placements and
associated costs (excludes Pathways to Independence (P21 block contract).

Placement type N“”ﬁbef of
children
Residential 90
Independent Fostering Agencies (IFA) 129
Supported Accommodation 16-17 39
Staffing Support for Unregistered (under 16) 5
Unaccompanied Asylum Seeking Children 46

Secure children’s home

Staffing Support at Home

Supported Accommodation 18+

3
1
Care - Unregistered 16+ 1
8
2

Residential Parent & Child

IFA Staying Put 14

IFA Parent & Child 2

Figures are for September 2023

Page 48



Whilst the number of children coming into care has been relatively static (excluding
unaccompanied asylum seeking children) we are concerned about the impact of the
cost of living crisis on families’ lives. Poverty is the main driver of needs that lead to
a child or young person coming into care — it is possible that we see a significant
increase in demand nationally in the next few years.

1.2 Local and national market

The national market for children looked after placements is best described as
broken. The Competition and Markets Authority report* makes sobering reading, for
example, in just six years costs for residential care have increased by 105%. A lack
of sufficiency is sometimes leading to profiteering at the expense of Council budgets
and children’s outcomes.

Somerset is working with over 200 external providers across the country which
indicates that we haven’t got the right mix of provision in place locally. Whilst there
is a good range of providers across all sectors in Somerset, providers are sometimes
reluctant to join more formalised contractual arrangements so we need to re-think
and commission differently.

Somerset is part of the Peninsula fostering and residential frameworks which is a
sub-regional commissioning arrangement with Devon, Plymouth and Torbay
Councils. There are 14 residential providers on the framework which offers a total of
75 beds within the peninsula geography and a further 82 beds outside of peninsula.
There is also a separate ‘Innovation’ residential lot where we can work more
creatively with the market. There are 11 Independent Fostering Agencies (IFAs) on
the Peninsula Fostering Framework. There are 17 residential providers operating in
Somerset but just 2 IFAs.

For housing related support and accommodation for 16 to 25 year olds, a block
contract for 100 beds will be in place in April 2024. We are also setting up a
dynamic purchasing system for additional capacity.

Both costs and sufficiency are affected by national changes, for example:

¢ Mandatory participation in the National Transfer Scheme has significantly
increased the population of unaccompanied asylum seeking children in
Somerset.

e NHS England changes mean we now support more children and young
people in care, who would previously have been in inpatient mental health
beds.

e Many registered children’s homes are reluctant to care for these children
through fear of a negative impact on their Ofsted rating. This shortage drives
up costs, can lead to profiteering, increases time and resources needed to
find a place as well as poor outcomes for the child.

1 Children’s social care market study — Final report. CMA (2022)

Page 49



1.3 CLA Outcomes Transformation

The sufficiency strategy assesses the needs of our children looked after population
and those at risk of coming into care, and quantifies the quality and volume of
support available from our in-house homes and external market.

This analysis is the foundation of our transformation programme. We want to:

e Better support children at risk of coming into care, before they come into care

e Increase the number of homes for children, especially foster care

e Design our in-house fostering, residential care and supported accommodation
SO we support the most complex needs

e Improve choice and match homes to children, significantly reducing out of
county places

e Reduce costs so we are within budget.

To achieve these aims we have eight workstreams:

1. Homes and Horizons — we will continue to deliver award-winning high-
guality support for young people with the most complex needs, so they
experience a loving home with flexible staffing and therapeutic education.
Homes seven and eight will be developed in 2024, with pods and annexes
added to existing homes for young people stepping-forward to more
independent living. Homes and Horizons is already saving £2.7m in 2023/24
and will continue to improve.

2. Fostering Improvement — for many children, a loving foster home and
family is the best outcome. We will significantly increase the number of in-
house foster carers by working in partnership with carers, improving support
and accelerating recruitment and retention. We expect overall costs to reduce,
but also improve the matching of homes to children. Through better support
services, foster carers will also be able to look after children with more
complex needs.

3. Re-commissioning 16+ — we have appointed two providers to deliver
housing related support and accommodation. The new service combines the
previous Pathways to Independence (P2l) block and spot purchasing into a
block contract, saving c. £3m in 2024/25. The new 16+ service is entering an
implementation phase for an April 2024 launch and will support all but the
most complex needs for 16 to 25 year olds. We are also reviewing the cost of
support for unaccompanied asylum seeking children and setting up a dynamic
purchasing system alongside the 16+ block contract.

4. Edge of Care Support — we are continuing to focus on keeping children at
home with their families — Somerset has a lower rate of children in care than
our neighbours and we want to keep it that way. Family Group Conferencing
will be targeted at those at risk of coming into care and promoting reunion with
birth families. We will pilot Family Safeguarding support to adults in the Family

Page 50



Intervention Service. And we will test targeted analytics to identify young
people missing education and at risk of care or criminality.

5. Intelligence and Control — we will develop a new Microsoft Bl dashboard as
a single version of the truth between Finance, Commissioning and Social
Care. The dashboard is dependent on a re-designed invoicing process and
new demand trajectories. We will also test Valuing Care to support better
analytics, improve how we match homes to children, and step-forward care
based on needs.

6. Inflation Negotiations — Negotiations continue with all providers.

7. Shape and Manage the Market — We need to significantly increase
sufficiency of both fostering and residential homes — building relationships
with local Somerset providers and building more capacity such as Homes and
Horizons. We will explore options to bring in social capital investment — both
at a local and national scale. And focus on the human and relational side of
commissioning that is the foundation of provider relationships.

8. Regional Commissioning — we will continue to work with Peninsula
colleagues and the wider region to increase sufficiency, particularly for more
complex needs. We will test the new Regional Care Cooperative models for
placements and fostering to understand potential benefits for Somerset
children and young people.

The eight workstreams form a tight programme of activity over eighteen months to

make a clear and focused difference to the Sufficiency Strategy aims and deliver
within our budget.

’ Homes & Horizons ? Fostering

Children
Looked After

C4

W Re-commissioning

4
Edge of Care

Outcomes
Transformation

Loving homes for
most complex
needs

8 to 10 homes
Therapeutic
education
Annexes and pods

Benefits
Significant savings in
23/24, 24/25 & 25/26

« Cost controls

+ Better data

*  More carers

Matching homes to

children with choice

More children stay

in county

Better market

relationships

Intelligence and
Control

New MS BI
dashboard
Redesign invoice
process

Test Valuing Care
to improve
matching

Improvement 16+

Recruit and retain
more foster carers
Support carers for
higher complexity

Better matching
Funding follows
child

Workforce
development

Inflation

Negotiations

Annual
conversation with
markets

Intelligence to
inform
commissioning

Page 51

« Procurement .
includes P2l and
complex spot
purchasing
Implementation
for April 24 launch
Partnership model
Review UASC
costs

Support

Family Group
Conferences
focused on CLA
Family
Safeguarding pilot
in FIS

CLA in education
Testing targeted
analytics

Regional

the Market
Reduce exposure .
to profiteering
Build more

Support small
local providers
Social capital
investment

Commissioning

Develop Peninsula
commissioning
Regional Care
Cooperatives for
fostering and
residential care




2.0 Introduction and purpose

Somerset Council’s Sufficiency Strategy for 2023-2028 sets out how we will meet
our statutory responsibility to provide safe, secure and appropriate homes for
children in care and care leavers over the next five years.

As corporate parents we have a statutory responsibility to act as any good parent
would.

Our vision is that:

Somerset’s children and young people grow up in a child-
friendly county that supports them to be safe, happy, healthy
and prepared for adulthood?

Key to this is ensuring that children live in stable homes that best meet their needs.

The Children Act 19892 places a duty on Local Authorities to “take steps that secure,
So far as reasonably practicable, sufficient accommodation within the authority’s
area” to support children in care. This is known as the sufficiency duty. This
means that we must look at the whole range of suitable accommodation for our
children, which can include:

Family homes with foster carers and connected (kinship) carers
Children’s homes

Residential special schools

Specialist provision

Supported accommodation for care leavers.

The sufficiency duty requires us to do much more than merely calculate the number
of beds we need. A focus on earlier preventative action for children on the edge of
care to prevent them coming into the care system, is crucial. It requires a whole
system approach. Connect Somerset, The Early Help Strategy, The Education for
Life Strategy, The SEND Strategy, The Young Carers’ Strategy and Our Somerset
are therefore all integral to our approach?.

It is about working with external providers to offer a range of options for children
and young people to ensure homes that can meet the individual needs of children
at any given time. It is also about generating new ideas and developments that
are sustainable, flexible and cost effective. This strategy therefore drives both
our social care practice and commissioning approaches for children on the edge of
care, those in care and care leavers.

2 Somerset Children and Young People’s Plan, 2022-24 & Children in Care in Somerset Pledge
3522G of the children Act (1989)
4 The Early help Strategy & SEND Strategy and our plans (somerset.gov.uk)

Page 52


https://www.somerset.gov.uk/children-families-and-education/somerset-children-and-young-peoples-plan/#:~:text=The%20Somerset%20Children%20and%20Young,healthy%20and%20prepared%20for%20adulthood.
https://www.somerset.gov.uk/children-families-and-education/corporate-parenting/#:~:text=The%20Corporate%20Parenting%20Board%20monitors,Council%20officers%20and%20our%20partners.
https://www.somerset.gov.uk/children-families-and-education/the-local-offer/about-the-local-offer/send-strategy-and-our-plans/#:~:text=want%20to%20read.-,SEND%20Strategy%20for%20Somerset,Action%20(2020%2D2022).

There are eight key principles that underpin this strategy:
1. We will support children to remain with their families, where they can.
However, where children and young people require care:

2. They will live in safe, loving and stable homes.

3. We will work closely with families and seek reunification, where possible.

4. Somerset children and young people will remain close to their families,
wherever possible remaining in Somerset.

5. We will support all of our carers (including providers) to have a long-term
commitment to our children.

6. We will work in partnership, using a relational approach to develop needs-led
homes for our children.

7. We will ensure that all carers (internal and external) are involved in children’s
support.

8. We will develop clear care pathways for our children that are aligned to adult
services and the services of our partners to ensure continuity of care and
wrap around support.

The strategy sets out our approach over the next five years to achieve the following
priorities for action:

Homes and Horizons

Fostering Improvement
Recommissioning of 16+ services
Edge of Care Support
Intelligence and Control

Inflation Negotiations

Shape and Manage the Market
Regional Commissioning

N>R~ WNE

The Sufficiency Strategy has been developed through consultation and workshops
with a range of operational and strategic managers, providers and children and
young people.

The strategy is an internal document aimed at commissioners, practitioners and
managers. Implementation will be tracked by an annual Programme Plan for
children looked after, supported by annual sufficiency statements that will outline our
progress in achieving our goals and next steps which will be published. This
approach will ensure that the strategy is a living document that is relevant and takes
account of any changes in Somerset over the next five years.

The Service Director for Children’s Commissioning and Service Director for Children
and Families are responsible for delivery. Oversight is through the CLA Outcomes
Transformation Board, reporting to the Somerset Council Children, Families and
Education Directorate Management Team and Corporate Parenting Board.

Page 53



3.0 Context

3.1 National Context

3.1.1 Edge of Care

In 2022 Josh MacAlister produced a national social care review, which highlighted
the need to bring together targeted early help services with support for children in
need in line with the original intentions of the Children’s Act 1989. The Care Review
calls this ‘Family Help’,

The Care Review’s definition of Family Help is:

The support that aims to improve children’s lives through supporting the
family unit and strengthening family relationships, to enable children to

thrive and keep families together, helping them to provide the safe,
nurturing environments that children need.

This definition aligns with Somerset’s Family Solutions, our long-standing Family
Intervention Service (FIS) and Connect Somerset.

Technology and information sharing capabilities have moved on significantly in the
last few years, with Somerset receiving government funding to explore safe and
ethical resources in the field, and to support other authorities in sharing information
well. Working Together to Safeguard Children (2014) has been updated to reflect a
broader definition of safeguarding, and an improved understanding of consent. This
work has potential to significantly improve edge of care services, targeting limited
resource where it will have the best impact in keeping families together.

3.1.2 Children looked after

The number of children in care has been rising steadily across England,
increasing by more than 15% from 69,470 in 2015 to 80,080 in 2020°. This figure is
expected to rise to 95,000 by 2025. CIPFA trends in children’s services spending
found that local authorities spent £11.1 billion on Children’s Social Care in
2021/22, a 41% rise compared to 2009°. As a result, local authorities are under
increasing financial pressure.

Additional challenges in meeting the sufficiency duty include:
e An older profile of children in care and remaining in care

¢ An increase in children who require specialist provision that can support
complex behaviours and needs

5 Demand and Capacity for Homes for Children in Care. A deep dive into trends, challenges and opportunities
impacting on supported accommodation (2023)
6 performance tracker (cipfa.org), (2023)

10
Page 54


https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/performance-tracker

e A lack of secure children’s homes nationally, resulting in the need for
alternative specialist homes

e Problems recruiting and retaining foster carers, residential care workers and
other children services professionals

e An ageing population of foster carers

e Private providers having more power and ability to choose the children they
take, resulting in local authorities having little or no choice.’

Many of these challenges are not new but some have been exacerbated by the
Covid-19 pandemic®. A County Council Network (CCN) Report in July 2023 found
that the number of children in care had increased by 10.1% year on year since the
pandemic. This additional pressure had resulted in 83% of county councils being
overspent on their children’s budgets. What Works for Children’s Social Care®
reported that post pandemic pressures were having a huge impact on local
authorities’ abilities to plan for their children. In fact, they found that only 56% of
local authorities had published sufficiency strategies and that these often-lacked vital
information and analysis particularly in relation to independent sector provision, costs
and credible forecasting.

In 2021 the Competition & Markets Authority (CMA)° launched a children’s social
care market study across the UK. The study found significant problems in how the
placements market was functioning. It highlighted:

e A lack of placements of the right kind in the right places. This means
that children are often placed in accommodation that does not meet their
needs.

e The largest private providers are making higher profits and charging
higher prices than the CMA would expect from an effectively functioning
market. The consolidation and integration of providers is a significant factor
in this.

e Some of the largest private providers are carrying very high levels of
debt, creating risk and possible disruptions to children’s placements.

A survey carried out by the Independent Childrens Homes Association (ICHA) in
May 20221 provides further insight. Providers are struggling to match children
with increasingly complex needs, with both their services’ capabilities and with
other children in the home. A failure to maintain good matching risks challenges
from Ofsted and potential suspension or closure of their homes which is detrimental
to their businesses and employees.

The survey notes the trend of increasing overall referral rates (particularly for those
children with complex needs) but lower occupancy levels. Problems in safely

7 How local authorities plan for sufficiency of accommodation that meets the needs of children in care and
care leavers. Ofsted (2022).

8 ) MacAlister, The independent review of children’s social care: final report”. Ofsted (2022) & Children’s social
Care 2022: recovering from the COVID-19 pandemic. Ofsted (2022)

® What can we learn from sufficiency strategies? What Works for children (2022)

10 Children’s social care market study — Final report. CMA (2022)

11 |CHA “State of the Sector” survey — 8 May 2022

11
Page 55



matching referrals to vacancies in multi-occupancy homes can lead to more solo
homes with high staffing levels, which not only reduces capacity but also results in
higher costs.

The report also highlighted the private sector’s approach to formal procurement and
tendering, with over one third not engaging with formal processes and 22% reporting
they had left a commissioned framework contract in 2023 (up from 17% in the
previous year). A new way of working is therefore required.

The CMA market study concluded that the market would not improve without
focused policy reform at a government level.

These reports, together with The Independent Review of Children’s Social Care, by
Josh MacAlister!?2 and “The National Review into the Murders of Arthur Labinjo-
Hughes and Star Hobson, led to the government’s publication of “Stable Homes,
built on Love™3,

This outlines the Government’s strategy to “rebalance children’s social care away
from costly crisis intervention to more meaningful and effective early

support”. |t seeks to address some of the urgent issues facing children’s social
care and provide a national direction for change. The strategy identifies six pillars for
reform that they will focus on over the next two years:

1. Ensuring family help provides the right support at the right time so that
children can thrive in their families

A decisive multi-agency child protection system

Unlocking the potential of family networks

Putting love, relationships and a stable home at the heart of being in care
Ensuring a valued, supported and highly skilled social worker for every child
who needs one

Creating a system that continuously learns, improves and makes better use of
evidence and data.

abrwn

o

Work over the next two years is focused on laying the foundations for a whole
system reform. This will include £200m to support the strategy, new guidance and
a series of pilots, from which to upscale. Many of these should impact on edge of
care support and sufficiency. Regional Care Co-operatives will be piloted (which
have received challenge from Councils). There are also proposals to:

Strengthen recruitment and retention of foster carers

Further explore corporate parenting principles

Provide funding for family finding

Develop befriending and mentoring programmes

Explore ways for care-experienced people to legally formalise lifelong bonds.

12 Independent review of children’s social care: final report. Josh MacAlister (2022). Independent review of
children's social care: final report - GOV.UK (www.gov.uk)

13 Stable Homes, Built on Love: Implementation Strategy and Consultation. Children’s social Care Reform
2023. DfE (2023)

12
Page 56


https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/independent-review-of-childrens-social-care-final-report
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/independent-review-of-childrens-social-care-final-report

3.1.3 Care Leavers

As well as this reform, we are beginning to see national changes impacting on our
young people. Ofsted has introduced a new separate judgement for care
leavers as part of the framework for inspecting local authority local children’s
services (ILACS inspections). New quality standards for providers of supported
accommodation have also been introduced. Under the new regulations,
providers who support 16 and 17 year olds must register with Ofsted by the end of
October 20234,

Supported accommodation placements have grown by 23% over the last 3
years, making it the fastest growing type of accommodation for children looked after
and care leavers. In a survey carried out by Newton Europe in 2022, 80% of
providers stated that they intended to register with Ofsted but 93% of these providers
also said that they intended to raise their fees. Data gathered by Newton Europe
indicates that the increase in unit cost is likely to be 15-30%. This has major
financial implications for all local authorities. The size of this increase could be
£500m-800m over three years.'®

All of these changes are likely to have implications for Somerset’s strategy and so
we will take account of emerging national changes over the next 5 years.

3.2 Somerset Context

Somerset is a changing local authority. The 2021 census showed that the
Somerset population is increasing at a higher rate than the overall increase for
England.'® Based on recent growth rates, it is estimated that the 2023 population is
580,000. This is expected to rise year on year to 596,273 by 2028. There are
approximately 110,000 children under the age of 18 years and between 5,000 to
10,000 have a particular need.

Although Somerset’s CLA population remains stable we are expecting the cost of
living crisis to tip more families into poverty which is a significant factor for
children coming into care.

In April 2023 a new Somerset Council was launched, bringing together the county
council and four district councils. The new council’s plan!’ recognises the
challenging time for the council: the economic climate facing the country, long term
strategic imperatives and ensuring financial support for care and reform. The council
will have less to spend on the growing challenges, and this means making difficult
decisions to ensure support for those in greatest need.

14 Guide to the supported Accommodation Regulations including quality Standards. DfE (2023)

15 Demand and Capacity of Homes for Children in Care. Challenges and opportunities in the provision of
supported accommodation for young people aged 16+. (2023). CCN, LiiA and Newton.

16 ONS population date. https://www.ons.gov.uk/visualisations/censuspopulationchange/E07000188/
17 Somerset Council Plan 2023-2027

13
Page 57


https://www.ons.gov.uk/visualisations/censuspopulationchange/E07000188/

3.2.1 Our strengths

Children’s Social Care was rated as “Good” in all areas by Ofsted in 2022. The

report stated that:

Families are supported to make positive changes that avoid
the need for court proceedings.

Decisions for children to come into care are timely and
appropriate. An increasing number of children are settled in
care, live in stable homes, and are making positive progress in
their lives.

Our areas of good practice include:

Somerset Council values the voice of children and families

A good early help and edge of care service, meaning the number of
children coming into care has remained relatively stable in Somerset.
Somerset has one of the lowest rates of children in need, children
subject to child protection plans and children looked after in the country,
lower than our statistical and South West neighbours.

New work such as Family Solutions, the Family Safeguarding Model and
Pause are making a difference to families

The majority of children live in stable homes.

Positive trusting relationships between children and their support
workers.

A strong focus on achieving permanency for children.

Good outcomes for children who need adoptive families as a result of our
work through Adopt South West.

Strong support for foster carers.

Good support for care leavers: there are increasing numbers of care
leavers in employment, education or training and data shows that 96% of care
leavers were living in suitable accommodation on 315t March 2023.

A significant increase in the number of young people in staying put
arrangements in 2023.

Award winning innovation and partnership work with the Shaw Trust and
NHS Somerset to develop in-county, nurturing homes for children, high needs
fostering and therapeutic education (Homes and Horizons).

Strong relationships with Somerset providers that benefit our children.

14
Page 58



3.2.2 Our challenges

Although our 2022 Ofsted grading was “good”, sufficiency was identified as an
area for improvement, and in particular emergency accommodation for older
children with complex needs. Securing sufficient accommodation to meet
children’s needs close to home remains a challenge.

Other challenges include:

e High transport costs (compared with other authorities) due to geographical
challenges in Somerset, which affects recruitment and service delivery

e Slow integration of health and social care and inefficiencies across the
system

e A significant increase in children coming into care due to relationship
breakdowns

e A growing number of older children remaining in the care system

e A lack of foster carers to meet the needs of children in Somerset

e Recruitment and retention issues in Somerset resulting in challenges to
secure residential workers in children’s homes

e Demand outstripping supply in Somerset results in providers selecting
which children they will take

e Rising numbers of Unaccompanied Asylum Seeking Children (UASC)

e Difficulties sourcing appropriate accommodation for children and young
people with complex needs. In particular: teenage boys involved in County
Lines; children with autistic tendencies or aggressive behaviour; and girls who
self-harm or have a suicidal ideation. Finding the right homes to meet these
children’s needs can be costly and challenging.

e High cost placements in unregistered homes due to difficulties sourcing
suitable homes. A small but significant number of children with complex needs
have been living in unregistered homes where care and accommodation is
commissioned separately. More than often this care does not meet needs
and the cost associated with supporting these placements is disproportionate.

e Detrimental impacts of the pandemic on the health and development of
young people. 2022 data shows that care leavers over the age of 16 in
Somerset have increased mental health needs and high levels of involvement
in substance misuse. They are also at greater risk of experiencing domestic
abuse and exploitation.

e Increased spend on spot purchasing of supported accommodation for
young people aged 16+ whose complex needs are too high to be supported
by the current Pathways to Independence (P2l) block contract arrangements.

e Ensuring cost effective placements through the sub-regional
commissioning arrangements.

These challenges mean that over 38% of Somerset’s children looked after, are
not living in Somerset and unable to be close to their family and support networks.

Children’s Social Care is facing mounting financial pressures because of this crisis.

15
Page 59



4.0 Summary of the needs of children on the
edge of care

Ages of children coming into care have remained broadly similar over the last
eight years, with the exception of 2 to 4 year olds which have increased. Itis
notable that these children were born shortly after financial constraints in Somerset
led to a significant programme of cuts across the system. The number of one year
old children has reduced, suggesting the impact of Family Safeguarding and
Pause has begun to mitigate the effect of those cuts.

The age of a child coming into care can give us an indication of where the significant
pressures are in families, where gaps may be in services, and how well identification
and assessment are working in social care. The data rarely points to one issue, but
knowledge of the wider system can help.

Babies and toddlers coming into care are much more likely to be adopted, and
therefore to have a better chance of positive life experiences. A higher number in
this group indicates a good identification and assessment process which catches
problems early and limits the amount of trauma experienced by the child.

What age was the child when they came into care?
30

25

28
24
20
20
15 16
|

0-2yrs 3-5yrs 6-10yrs 11-15yrs 16 & 17yrs

o

(9]

o

From April 2021 to March 2022, 27% of children in care were 0-2 years old. This
had reduced considerably from the previous year (41% - April to September 2021,
35% - October 2020 to March 2021), demonstrating a downward trend.

Factors impacting this downward trend could include Family Safeguarding, which
has improved support to families so that they can remain together. There will also be
an impact from the Pause programme, which has enabled approximately 40 women
to end the cycle of their children successively coming into care, usually at birth.

16
Page 60



% of children aged 16 and 17 coming into care
30

25
20

15

Percentage

10

Ul

o

Oct 20 - March 21 April - Sept 21 Oct 21 - March 22

From October 2021 to March 2022 24% of young people coming into care were aged
16 and 17 (16% - April to September 21, 19% - October 20 to March 21),
demonstrating an upward trend.

However, this group included 4 unaccompanied asylum seeking children, without
which the percentage is 20%, a less significant increase on the previous year.
Research on young people’s mental health following the pandemic suggests that
families with teenagers have experienced considerable difficulties, which might
suggest a rise in this age group entering care.

Since 2015, ages of children coming into care has remained broadly stable. In
the graph below. An overall rise in 1 to 4 year-olds began in 2018/19, when
significant cuts in spending across the system may have had an impact.

% ages of children coming into in care

120

100
8
6
4
2
0 e w0

2015-16  2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22

o

o

o

o

B % Age: Under 1 B%Age:1to4 m%Age:5t09
H % Age: 10 to 15 H % Age: 16 and over

17
Page 61



4.1 Reasons for children coming into care

During 2021-22, 16 children (15.8%) came into care following a relationship
breakdown with their family. This represents a steady decline over the preceding 18
months. All of these children were over 11 years old, with the majority (10) being 16
or 17 years old.

Family Group Conferencing (FGC) is a solution focused approach to bringing
families together during times of conflict. In this group of 16 children, an FGC was
held for only two children, and these were both aged between 11-15. Five children’s
families declined an FGC, and nine were not offered one.

Support for families with adolescent children is available through the Council’s
Family Intervention Service (FIS) as well as parenting programmes. However, this
is an area where earlier support to help parents prepare for the changing needs of
their children could be expanded.

e 50% of children aged 11 to 17 in care had difficulties with education prior to
coming into care.

e 40% of children aged 16 or 17 in care were not in education, employment
or training (NEET) or had poor school attendance

e 66% of children aged 11 to 15 in care were known to have poor school
attendance or be on part-time timetables.

4.1.1 Neglect

23 (23%) of children who came into care during 2022/3 had experienced neglect. All
of whom had been known to us. The majority of Somerset’s children
experiencing neglect are under ten years old.

The care review stated that “Social care is also often failing to identify or
respond effectively to neglect in older children” (Ofsted, 2018). This is therefore
an area where Family Safeguarding interventions are expected to have an impact.

4.1.2 Hidden Harm

48.5% (49) of children coming into care had concerns related to one or more ‘hidden
harm’ of domestic violence, parental substance misuse and parental mental ill health
(38% April 2021 — September 2021, 57% October 2020 — March 2021, 69.5% April —
September 2020).

18
Page 62



% of children in care where concerns around 1 or more
hidden harm

80
70
60
50
40
30
20
10

Percentage

o

April - Sept 20 Oct 20 - March 21 April - Sept 21 Oct 21 - March 22

The 49 children, represents 36 families in total. The majority of these were known to
us. Ages are broken down as follows:

Age categories of children in care where concerns
around 1 or more hidden harm (October 21 - March
22)

'\

m0-2yrs ®m3-5yrs m6-10yrs m11-15yrs m16 & 17yrs

19
Page 63



The hidden harms reported in this audit can be broken down as follows:

e Parental mental ill health: 49% (24 children); after an initial jump from 17%
(April to September 2020), this percentage has remained relatively stable
over the last 18 months.

e Domestic Violence: 31% (15 children) — this percentage has remained
relatively stable over the last 2 years.

e Substance misuse: 30% (19 children) - although fluctuating, this represents
an overall downward trend over the last 2 years.

4.1.3 Children’s mental ill health

6% (6 children) came into care due to their own mental ill health and parents/carers
being unable to manage this (an increase from 1.7% in the last reporting period). 5
of these children were 16 or 17 years old.

4.1.4 Case status prior to coming into care

Approximately 10% of CLA were known to early help or universal services. Data
shows that just under half of these were previously on child protection plans.

4.2 Education

The graph below shows the educational experience of children prior to coming into
care.

Educational experience of children 12 months prior to
coming into care

01 116
Permanent Exclusion | &
Fixed Term Exclusion 01
Poor School attendance n 15
Part time timetable d
None identified _38 49

No school placement (child moved into area) l 23

NEET [k o

child is pre school [N 45
0 20 40 60 80 100 120 140

mApril - Sept21 mOct 21 - March 22

20
Page 64



30 of the children in this cohort were pre-school age and have been disregarded
from the analysis. The bar chart below shows that 24 of the school aged children
(23.8%) experienced poor school attendance or were NEET at some point in the 12
months prior to them coming into care. This represents a steady decline in adverse
educational factors being present for children coming into care.

% of children, per cohort, with adverse education factors in
12 months prior to coming into care

60

50

40

30

20

10

Oct 20 - March 21 April - Sept 21 Oct 21 - March 22

Six children (8.5%) from this cohort had a part-time timetable at some point during
the 12 months prior to coming into care. None of the children had experienced either
fixed term or permanent exclusions from school.

4.3 Spend

The council spends approximately £14m a year on preventative, children in
need and child protection services directly focused on keeping families
together. These services are successful, but more could be done to expand the
offer to include multi-agency targeted early help, supporting more families at an
earlier stage, and increasing family reunification.

21
Page 65



5.0 Summary of the needs of Children Looked
After (CLA)

In Somerset, the CLA population has increased at a slower rate than the
national average. Data for 315t March 2022 shows that the rate of CLA per 10,000
in Somerset was 50 compared to a national average of 70 and 68.5 for our statistical
neighbours. The graph below, shows that on 315t March 2023 there were 565 CLA
compared to 527 on 315t March 2020. An increase of only 6.7% in the last 3 years.
In fact, in the last year, if the 46 unaccompanied asylum-seeking children were
removed from the graph, it would show 519 children, a similar figure to 2021.

Children Looked After on March 31st

As highlighted in Chapter 3, most children continue to enter the care system
because of abuse and neglect. However, we have seen a significant increase in
children coming into care because of family relationships breaking down.

On 31t March 2023, the CLA population comprised:

e 51% male, 48% female and 1% identified as other.

e 86% of CLA were white and 94% excluding UASC; 4% had mixed heritage;
3% were black and 6% from other ethnic groups.

e 8.5% had a disability and 160 of these children were open to the Children with
Disabilities (CWD) social work team.

e 46 UASC — 8% of the CLA population. A significant increase from 2022.

The age profile of CLA in Somerset is rising in line with other comparator authorities.

22
Page 66



5.1 Permanency

Permanency is the term used to describe long term arrangements for children
through adoption or with family members. 90% of CLA had a recorded permanency
plan for the year ending 31t March 2023. For the majority of children, the plan was
for long term foster care (194 children). Of these, 9.87% (53 children) were in
kinship care arrangements. The chart below shows this breakdown.

Permanency Plans for Children in Care - 31/03/23

B Return to family (72) B Adoption (61)
W SGO/ CAO (15) B Long Term fostering (194)
M Residential Care (61) W Supported Accommodation (81)

Further work is needed to establish if plans are achieving permanence for children.
However, data for the year ending 315t March 2023, showed that six children’s plans
were changed from adoption; 5 of these changed to long-term fostering and one to a
special guardianship order. Whilst some of these changes ensured continuity of
care, the changes were mainly due to a lack of appropriate adoptive homes.

5.1.1 Achieving permanency through adoption

In August 2022 the Adoption and Special Guardianship Leadership Board (ASGLB)
reported that nationally the number of children moving into the adoption
process continued to decline, and children were waiting longer for permanence.
Somerset’s experience largely mirrors this. However, in 2021-2022 adoptions were

23
Page 67



severely delayed in Somerset, following a technical irregularity and so only 6 children
were adopted. This resulted in a backlog and 31 adoptions were granted in 2022-23.
As a result, data is skewed.

In the first five months of 2023, there were:

e 10 adoption orders made
e 6 court hearings for adoption
e 20 children placed for adoption or foster for adoption arrangements.

A key element of our strategy is early permanence arrangements. This is where
children are moved into permanent arrangements early. These are largely made
through Fostering for Adoption arrangements (FFA), where children live with
approved adopters, who are also temporarily approved as Somerset Council foster
carers. On 31st March 2023 there were 14 children placed through early
permanence, a similar figure to the previous year. This figure is low compared to
neighbouring authorities. Increasing the number of early permanence
arrangements is therefore a key part of our strategy going forward.

5.1.2 Achieving permanence through Special Guardianship Orders (SGOs)

More children are being placed with family members by the Local Authority under
Regulation 24 which is the temporary approval of a connected person to become a
foster carer to allow for sufficient time for a foster carer approval. Forty SGO’s were
granted in 2022-23. This was lower than 2021-22 but figures had been skewed that
year. In the first five months of 2023, 26 SGOs were made.

5.1.3 Maintaining permanency

There are significantly fewer placement breakdowns in adoptive placements and
SGOs than in long term foster care.

In the year ending 315t March 2023, four children who had been adopted came back
into the care system. Two of these children had been placed in Somerset by other
local authorities. A significant factor for these children had been the number of
placement moves they had experienced in their lives. Early permanence
arrangements might have reduced these.

Data for 2022-23 also shows that 11 children on SGOs also came into care. Of
these 7 remained in care long term.

Whilst we have only recently begun to track breakdowns, it is apparent that
improving packages of support for those in permanency arrangements could
have a significant impact on success. In 2022-23, 82% of referrals for post
special guardianship support resulted from crisis. Identifying additional support
earlier for children is crucial to keeping these families together and is therefore
a key element of our strategy going forward.

24
Page 68



5.2 Pressures /trends in the CLA population
5.2.1 Accessing the right education for some CLA

The Education for Life Strategy recognises that school performance in Somerset is
sometimes poor, and outcomes for disadvantaged children are in decline. There is
also a high percentage of exclusions, which affects disadvantaged children and
those with special educational needs disproportionately. The vision is that
education and social care will work together to ensure sufficient education and
placements are available to meet individual children’s needs locally.

Work has begun to achieve this vision. Year one of the Education for Life Strategy
includes two key projects. The first is a research project focused on preventing
exclusions by exploring what support was offered to those children known to
services prior to their exclusion. The second focuses on collaborative attendance -
exploring ways of strengthening partnerships between schools and parent/
carers. Pilots have also looked at strengthening trauma awareness in schools.
Therapeutic Education is being developed in the new Homes and Horizons
partnership.

5.2.2 Anincrease in UASC

In 2022 Somerset’s quota for UASC was only 2% of the CLA population. This was
much lower than the national average and our statistical neighbours were at 7% and
6% respectively. In 2022 the National Transfer Scheme (NTS) increased our quota
so that the number of UASC increased significantly from 10 children to 46 (8% of the
CLA population) in the year ending March 2023. In addition, there were 43 care
leavers who had been UASC. Whilst Somerset has received funding to support
these children, it has not covered the true cost and the huge increase has placed
additional pressures not only on homes for children, but also created pressures for
community services in Somerset.

As we move forward a clear pathway for UASC is essential, as well as ensuring
specific outcomes for UASC with providers through our new Dynamic Purchasing
System (DPS) within the new 16+ Service.

25
Page 69



5.2.3 Anincrease in CLA with complex needs resulting in difficulties finding
stable needs led placements.

Like the national trend, the number of older children in the care system is growing
year on year. The graph below clearly illustrates this trend:

Age Distribution of Children Looked After
120

100

s
2

&

(=)
=

=]

o 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17

mMar-19 mMar-20 mMar-21 mMar-22 mMar-23

A small but growing number of CLA have highly complex needs. It is often difficult
for us to meet these needs in-house or even within the county. The number of
children living outside of the county has therefore increased significantly over the last
10 years, rising from 91 in March 2013 to 212 in March 2023: a rise of 57% shown in
the graph below.

CLA Living Inside or Qutside of Somerset (As at 31st March each year)

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2018 2020 2021 2022 2023

100%

90!

&

&
S

70!

@

60!

&

50

&

% of total CLA

40

&

30

&

20

&

10

@

0%

Year

min mOut

26
Page 70



We know that we make good decisions for the majority of children. However, the
difficulties in finding the right homes for children is having an adverse impact
on stability for children and their outcomes. Both short-term and long-term stability
indicators show that Somerset’s performance is below that of comparator authorities.

In 2022 14% of children had more than 3 placement moves during the year
compared to 10% or 11% in all other comparator groups. In the year ending 315t
March 2023, this rose to 17% (95 children).

Managers’ report that placement moves are often positive. The difficulties
experienced in finding the right homes for children often means that moves are
necessary to get the right home. This should therefore have a positive impact on
long term stability. However, this is not yet the case.

For children who have been looked after for more than 2.5 years, Somerset’s
performance is below comparator authorities. In the year ending 315 March
2022, 67% had been living in the same homes for over 2 years (compared to 71%
nationally and 72% for our statistical neighbours). This dropped further to 58% in the
year ending 315t March 2023.

March 2022 data shows that Somerset had a significantly higher percentage of
placement breakdowns as a result of children’s behaviour compared to all
comparator groups. 16% of placement moves were as a result of carers requesting
the move because of children’s behaviour, compared to 10% nationally and 12% in
the South West and our statistical neighbours. This raises questions about matching
and the support provided when difficulties are identified.

In January 2023, the IRO service undertook a dip sample audit of 12 unplanned
placement endings that had taken place over the previous 18 months. The majority
of children looked at were in foster care or kinship care (84%) and a small number in
residential homes. Although this was a small unrepresentative sample, the audit
revealed some helpful findings:

e 50% of children audited were living with siblings who also experienced similar
endings.

e 58% of the children had received formal matching whilst no matching was
carried out for 42% of the sample.

o Worryingly, 25% of the endings involved the young person making an
allegation.

e Children’s voices were actively heard and generally a lot of support was
offered by children’s social care and partners.

e Support offered was frequently at the point of crisis.

e Social work visits had not increased when there were signs that the
placement was struggling.

e There was a lack of reflective conversations between social workers and
managers about possible endings.

The audit has resulted in practice changes aimed at early identification of
placement difficulties and learning from endings, which will form part of our
strategy going forward.

27
Page 71



Reasons for placement breakdown and children's complex needs for
cohort of children leading to unregistered placements

14
12

10

o N B~ O

& ) 9 ) AN N Q N
A\Oo Q‘?\e '\\(@ 99\(\ -\-"{b & '23\\0 c;'b&?J
N © ) & & S F S
Q Q O \2 S $ &
0 @ N O S N @ S
S O O N Q Q< O N
X N >° 3 & © 3 4
8¢ RS R © S\ & 9 &
N & o? N S & &
& « N Gl S @ &
> N Q) & @ «& &
N4 S & X o @ o
el O 0@ Q_\‘-’ %{‘ ) S
N & N
& & ©
L& 0*0 \;b
) \@q
%{b

5.2.4 A shortage of support and accommodation for children with disabilities

Providing short breaks to children and young people with disabilities is part of
the statutory guidance!®. Overnight breaks can be provided under Section 17 or
Section 20 of the children Act (1989). This provision is therefore part of this strategy,
if the children are deemed looked after. Over the past 10 years overnight short
break provision and day care support has reduced significantly in Somerset:

e The number of in-house short break foster carers have fallen
significantly from 35 to 3.

e In-house short break homes have reduced by 50% from 4 to 2. The
current homes are registered for 8 beds in total but in reality, because of
staffing issues, most weeks only 5 beds are available.

e Somerset Supporters have almost halved in recent years from over 30 to
only 16 in July 2023. As a result, in July 2023 they were only able to support
28 children and there were a further 48 children waiting to be matched to a
supporter.

e Thefall in the supply of provision has been met with a corresponding
increase in demand for support. In July 2023, 160 children received social
care support through the CWD team, and 450 children received early help
support.

18 Short Breaks. Statutory guidance on how to safeguard and promote the welfare of disabled children using
short breaks. (2010). Short breaks for disabled children - GOV.UK (www.gov.uk)

28
Page 72


https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/short-breaks-for-disabled-children

Eighteen of these children were looked after. Their placements were as follows:

e 11 inlong term foster care
e 6 in residential school settings
e 1in a high-cost residential home outside of Somerset.

All 7 children in residential settings were living some distance from their home,
community and support networks. These placements are not only financially
expensive —they also carry social and developmental costs for children.

There were 22 disabled children in need (CIN) receiving short break provision and 4
on CIN plans living in residential school settings. A further 16 children with
disabilities were deemed to be on the edge of care. All of whom had diagnosed
neuro-diversity conditions. For many, the support was being provided through
agency care in the community and was seen as not robust enough to meet needs.
For these families, pressures are heightened, and the risk of family breakdown is
increased.

Both the SEND strategy and local data show a steady rise in the number of CLA with
an Education, Health and Care Plan (EHCP). In 2022, 50.4% of Somerset CLA had
an EHCP. This was significantly higher than all other comparator groups and the
SEND Transformation Programme is seeking to understand this further.

Whilst it is apparent there has been a drastic reduction in the sufficiency of
accommodation and services for children with disabilities, there is very little analysis
to identify how the needs of these children can be met in the future. At present the
service is largely reactive and there is limited data to inform sufficiency. Going
forward further analysis is needed to:

e Forecast the numbers and specific needs of children with a disability
likely to require services (from health prevalence data)

e I|dentify the number of short break bed hours required to assess whether
further developments are required (from analysis of those children on the
edge of care)

e Establish a business case for any future provision required using costs of
edge of care and CWD admissions to care following family breakdowns.

29
Page 73



5.2.5 Increased child and adolescent mental health needs

CAMHS data from Somerset NHS Foundation Trust shows an increased demand in
services since 2020. Referrals for the mental health support team increased from
300 to almost 700 and the average length of involvement also increased across all
teams.

The emotional health and wellbeing team, which is a joint funded team across the
Council and CAMHS, offers clinical therapeutic interventions for children looked after
as well as supporting and offering training to professionals caring for those children
and young people.

The team works with complex (developmental) trauma and with disturbed young
people. Support is crucial to the ‘team around the child’ as relationships can be very
challenging.

At the end of September 2023 the team had 113 open involvements which translates
to 101 young people.

e 44.2% of open involvements are working with Care Leavers
54.0% of open involvements are working with CLA.

These involvements consisted of the following support:

31 - Direct work with carers

29 - Direct work with young people
26 - Support to professionals

15 - Multi-agency joint working

11 - Support to school

7 - Support to residential providers
6 - Direct work with birth family

2 - Psychological assessments

There is clearly a need for this type of multi-disciplinary support which should be
looked at further to fully understand future requirements.

30
Page 74



6.0 Summary of the needs of Care Leavers

Somerset has seen an average growth of 16—22-year-old care leavers!®. On 315t
March 2023, there were 572 care leavers in Somerset. The vast majority (93%) of
whom had remained in care until their 18" birthday. In August 2023, the age
breakdown of young people worked with by the Care Leaver teams was:

12% aged 16 years
17% aged 17 years
18% aged 18 years
53% aged 18+

Data shows that:

e 99% of care leavers were still in touch with their workers

e 98% of 17-18 year olds and 94% of 19—-21-year-olds were in suitable
accommodation. A higher percentage to those of our comparator authorities

e 60% of 17 to 18 year olds are in education, employment or training (EET).
This is similar to England and statistical neighbours but at 58% the number of 19-
to 21 year olds who were in education, training or employment is higher than both
the England and statistical neighbour averages (51% for statistical neighbours in
2022).

e 32% of care leavers are in staying put arrangements.

In August 2022, we undertook detailed work to obtain a greater understanding of the
needs of those young people over the age of 16. The age profile of those 16 to 25
year olds in supported accommodation arrangements clearly show that the greatest
number of placements were made for 18 and 19 year olds. It should be noted
that these figures will include 18-25 year olds who are not known to children’s social
care but who are deemed in priority need and owed a housing duty, due to the
nature of the current P2l contract.

1% Demand and Capacity of Homes for Children in Care. Challenges and opportunities in the provision of
supported accommodation for young people aged 16+. (2023). CCN, LiiA and Newton.

31
Page 75



45
40
35
30
25
20
15
10

(6]

Ages of Young People in 16+ placements

41
38
25
17 15
11 12
5 6
l 2
[] -
16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23

24 25

Providers, Social Workers and Leaving Care Workers provided a snapshot of 183
young people (as of August 2022) to identify their support needs. This showed that:

65% had a mental health issue, of which 53.3% are engaged with mental
health services (64)

55% were at risk of or had experienced domestic abuse

50% were at risk of or had experienced exploitation

42% were mis-using substances, of which only 25% (19 of 76) were
engaged with substance misuse services

24% had physical ill health or a disability

22% had a learning disability

Only 11% were engaged in offending behaviour.

32
Page 76



6.1 Pressures /trends in the care leavers’ population

6.1.1 A significant increase in the number of young people staying put

The number of young people in staying put arrangements increased significantly in
2023 from 22% to 32%. We know that this will have a significant impact on these
young people’s lives. Research shows that staying put arrangements enable
young people to prepare for independence in a nurturing environment which
results in greater engagement in education, employment and training.

6.1.2 Fewer Care Leavers Living with family

Somerset has fewer care leavers living with parents than comparator
authorities. In March 2022 the number of 16 and 17 year old care leavers living
with parents or relatives fell to 8% compared to 16% in the previous year. Data for
31st March 2023 shows that 13% of all care leavers were living with parents or
relatives. Only 3% of 16 and 17 year olds were living with family. This raises
guestions about reunification, the use of family group conferencing for CLA and care
leavers and how we work with those families.

6.1.3 Increase in care leavers living in supported accommodation

The number of care leavers aged 16-21 years old (including UASC) in
supported accommodation has increased significantly. In 2022, 16 and 17 year
old care leavers living in supported accommodation increased from 24% to 53% and
for 19 to 21 year olds it increased from 13% to 21%. This is higher than comparator
authorities. Placements were made up of a combination of Pathways to
Independence (P2l), which is the Council’s youth homelessness service, and spot
purchased arrangements for young people with more complex needs.

6.1.4 Fewer Care Leavers Living Independently

Despite the above, the number of care leavers 16-21 years living independently
has fallen and is significantly lower than comparator authorities. In August
2023 only 17% of all care leavers were living independently. This is in part due to
the lack of suitable and affordable housing for young people but is also directly linked
to the increase in semi-independent accommodation. The increase in serious youth
crime and high-risk behaviours amongst care leavers has meant that fewer are able
to live independently without support.

33
Page 77



7.0 What Children Looked After and Care
Leavers tell us?

Somerset’s Youth Forum created the map below of people and professions who
made them feel safe, called Circles of Community. Our aim is to ensure the people in
the first three circles are supported and well informed, so that they can continue to
be a safe community for Somerset’s children.

Who makes you feel safe
in your community?

These circles represent who you feel makes you feel safe in your
community, from those who are closest to you all the way to the
Government and the media, as suggested by you.

TV shows
@ Activists and stuff

X 2::\2::3 Media  Reporters
© Government @ e
o o 9 Politicians

© Headteachers

Armed
L forces @ Lawmakers o Staff members

*~ in schools

<

@ Strangers [) Friends
of friends
Teachers
Parents Youth e
<!, friends g workers Self
; Petnle g reliance
you know

Friends g Classmates

g that aren’t

e as close Neighbours @

L ]

Less @ Colleagues

spoken . @ Pets ]
to family Friends Family

Extended People you

e family can %ep);nd
on g
9 Peokple that =

£ (e Comfort
feel safe people g

34

Page 78



We regularly consult with children looked after and care leavers, who stress the
following messages:

. Consistency — there should be fairness and equality for all young
people wherever we live in Somerset

. Choice — “Give me choice about where | want to live, and can | see it
before | move in”

. Don’t give up on us — “sometimes | will make mistakes”

. Show an interest in us and get to know us well — sometimes just

asking me “How my day has gone” helps; “be interested in me”; “get to
know me”

. Staff need to have good relationships with us and they should be
trained to understand all our traumas and needs

. Give us welcome packs — | may not know how to use the washing
machine or who | need to speak to if something in the home doesn’t
work or | want to give some feedback, also, where is the nearest shop

. Homes should feel like homes — homes should be cosy

. Homes should include activities and entertainment — pool tables and
games consoles

. Homes for young people should include Fast Wi-Fi and should be
easy to get online — we all need to be able to use it at the same time

10.Help us to make friends

11.We need help to understand tenancy agreements — “it's a minefield”

12.‘Stage not age’ — we are all different and need to get the support and
homes we need.

Consultation with a group of young people took place in October 2023 to seek their
views on the sufficiency of homes. Their comments can be seen on the following
page — showing how important it is for young people to continue to be involved in
service design.

35
Page 79



| did have a choice. Afterl
was gold banded | was
able to bid on properties.
It feltgood to have that
independence especially
after not having that most
of my life.

| was moved to different hotels for a couple
of months. | don’t have a choice about that.
| need to pay £150 in arrears to be gold
banded to get out of this situation. | can't
cook in the hotel and don’t have the money
to eatout. | am on UC and still trying to
pay off £150 while not being able to cook is

hard on my budgeting. The eouncil mustbe

paying more than £150 a week for me to

be staying here and that is crazy, whata

waste of money, | can’t understand why

some payment scheme was agreed sol

could be gold banded rather than this waste
\ of money.

| didn‘t getan
opportunity to visit

Benefitsand

financial supportis
not consistent with
different providers

any of them firstand
lived outof my
suitcase for ayear

| live in the middle of
nowhere. Carers can’t
always take me so hard
to getaround.

If I'm living out of Somerset| still want
the benefits that| would get in County;
eg we don’t have to pay council tax but
in some counties youdo. Not my fauttl
am living out of Somerset.

Think back to when you moved to your present home...

What's the best
thing about where
you live?

What advice would you give
to the people planning future
homes for CLA in Somerset?

I live
somewhere
where | feel
supported and
not isolated

Make any new
housing
developments have
a training flatand /
or 1 bedroom flats
for young people
who are vulnerable
included as part of
the plan

Creating ashortvideo
for newresidentsto
watch before moving
there. Things like this
which gives us more of a
picture would be good.

When | was at
Provider‘A’
the worker
was a mother
figure to me

l have
independence!

Travel links are
good where |
live and am
hearfriends
and family

Listen to
our lived
experience

Involve
us with
the
planning

Maybe CLA and
care leavers
could have train

or bus passesto
help with
challenge of
travel in parts of
the county

The Tenant Accreditation
Scheme is a good way of
preparing us for
independence




8.0 Working in partnership with providers

A workshop was held with a range of providers and commissioners in September
2023. The workshop focused on 2 exercises.

Exercise 1 — How are you currently working with us to
meet our challenges around:
* Increasing costs
* Not enough of the right homes in Somerset
* Increasing humbers of UASC
* Increasing humber of older children in care
« Lack of foster carers
* Increasing number of children with complex needs
* Lack of move-on accommodationfor young people
* Children experiencing humerous placement moves
* Limited short break provision
* Children in care attending appropriate education

High rates of re -
We have funding investment - fefad_ing
to purchase new LG @i < Gir e growth and providing more

homes to help options for children in
PrAERsy = W2 rental costs stay Szmerset

need under control
reassurance of

partnership

working - Home managers who

through set up We always offer are open and

to launch to Somerset interested in placing
first 16+ children

Cost planning
models and —

. . Expanding to
innovation fund p 9

Set up specific provide more
homes for UASC supported
- it works well accommodation

Providing specialist
supported
accommodation for
YP involved in
County Lines and
wider exploitation

Providing high ratio Provide a
support and training flat
focussing on for over 18s
stabilisation

Specialising in Exploring

dual homes for Inspired industry development of
Working with complex programme - Staying Close pods
professionals children (Tier 4 Apprenticeship in our children’s
around the child step-down) offers homes
and work
collaboratively

Free access to Growing
Offer training to gym for alternative
schools and education residents in education
settings around County Bridgwater provision
Lines and exploitation

Page 81



Exercise 2 — What can you do to enhance sufficiency to
meet the needs of our children over the next 5 years

Trusting commitment would Future planning
equal: needed - be honest,
* prepared to open more level of need, better

provision matching
Shared cost, shared risk

Support us through registration We need
security -

retainers?

Shared Commitment to tangible

dialogue support packages that Cost planning

with Ofsted come with complex young models and
people innovation fund

Creation of a children’s system forum to include

fostering, residential and Supported

Accommodation Comprehensive
Shared training/skills referral — quality,
More consistency accurate, context,
MDT approach - support services involved up to date
Critical challenge
Links to local support

Strategic growth -
Proactive planning Confidence to move
— work with forwards and increase
providers to move capacity — Manage risk
children back to and shared strategy
Somerset

Support with
recruitment

Page 82



9.0 How are we meeting the needs of children
on the edge of care?

Somerset’s Family Solutions service includes interventions which families can
choose to engage with, as well as services which are required as part of a child
in need or child protection plan.

The purpose of Family Solutions and the Family Intervention Service (FIS) is to
help keep families together safely, in a nurturing and loving environment. If safety
cannot be maintained, or a child is not able to thrive, child protection processes will
be enacted.

In addition to Family Solutions, Somerset is developing a more connected
community offer, called Connect Somerset, which aims to bring together all the
organisations who support families at the early help stage. This means that
Somerset will have a comprehensive offer to Somerset residents from early
help through to statutory interventions, helping families every step of the way.

9.1 Family Safeguarding

Somerset’'s Family Safeguarding work results in fewer children in care than the
approach used in Somerset’s Wider Safeguarding Teams. In 2022/3 each Family
Safeguarding Team averaged 5.25 children coming into care, while the Wider
Safeguarding Teams averaged 8.5.

Family Safeguarding has resulted in a reduction in children coming into care

because their parents were experiencing substance misuse, mental health or
domestic abuse, (‘Hidden Harm’).

% Children CLA where concerns around 1 or more hidden harm

Percentage
S
o

April - Sept 20 Oct 20 - March 21 April - Sept 21 Oct 21 - March 22
Reporting period

39
Page 83



Family Safeguarding has also impacted the number of children subject to child
protection plans from an average of 275 in 2020 to an average of 225 in 2023.

CP Data since
January 2020

300

200

2021 2022 2023

The time a family spends on a child protection plan has also fallen, showing the
effectiveness of Family Safeguarding interventions. The number of plans lasting
over 2 years has reduced from 21 to 14, and plans lasting between 1 and 2 years
have reduced from 146 to 52.

CP Plans Ceased During Financial Year by Duration

Plan Duration @ < 3 months @ 3 to 5 months @ 6to 11 manths @1 to 2 years @Qver 2 years

200 <eeeeeee

150

100

2018/19 T 2019720 o 2020721 o 2021/22 o 20223 7
Year

40
Page 84



It is therefore clear that for families who have reached a significant level of concern
with a child protection plan, Family Safeguarding is an effective intervention to
improve parents’ ability to care for their children and keep families together.
This reduces costs for the authority and improves outcomes for children, young
people, their parents and their wider families.

FIS already merges early help with Section 17 child in need work, as recommended
by the Care Review. Demand is greater than capacity and this team requires
support from substance misuse, mental health and domestic abuse specialists in
order to reduce length of cases, prevent returning cases, and reduce escalation.
Linking FIS with Connect Somerset Area Champions and neighbourhood areas will
strengthen the early help element of the service and enable families to build
resilience within their communities.

Ofsted’s inspection in 2022 identified the quality of early help services provided
to children by the Family Intervention Service (FIS) as strong:

The service delivers a highly effective rapid response to children
on the edge of care, which is successful in repairing
relationships and preventing family breakdown, so helping many
children to remain with their families.

9.2 Transform

Somerset has developed a way of collating inputs and outcomes from a range of
partner agency databases, to give one holistic view of a child and their family.
Transform can act simply as an information tool, giving practitioners up to date
contact details, and it can also act as a professional safety tool, notifying
domestic abuse incidents from as recently as the day before. More complex
targeted analytics is possible, and this is currently being developed through DfE
funding, working in partnership with Bristol City Council.

Early identification is essential in preventing children coming into care to
create the best possible opportunity to prevent the situation escalating or the social
issues becoming so entrenched, they are difficult to change, the use of data and
analytics can effectively support this work. Early Identification of the risk of coming
into care can be achieved by analysing various data sources, including historical
case records, socioeconomic data, family history, and behavioural patterns. By
detecting patterns and trends, social workers, family workers and agencies
can intervene early to offer assistance and support to these families, thereby
preventing situations from escalating.

41

Page 85



10.0 How are we meeting the needs of
Children Looked After and Care Leavers?

10.1 Where are children looked after living?

In Somerset only 40% of CLA are living in local authority provision compared to
46% nationally, 50% in the South West and 54% in statistical neighbouring
authorities. 44% of our accommodation is provided by private providers, 6% higher
than national use and that of our statistical neighbours (as at 31/03/22). This is not
to say that we have not developed accommodation for our children. We have
strengthened our relationships with providers and begun to enter into
strategic partnerships.

One of these partnerships is the Homes and Horizons strategic partnership, aimed
at providing appropriate nurturing homes and support locally for children with the
most complex needs. We have entered into a 10 year partnership with Homes 2
Inspire (H21), which is part of the Shaw Trust (a registered charity) to establish 8-10
homes for children with complex needs, each supported by a therapeutic
education service. The development of linked therapeutic foster carers will also
enable these children to step forward to family living, when the time is right.

10.1.1 Children living in foster care

Data shows that in the 7 years until March 315t 2022, children living with foster
carers fell from 77% to 64% of the CLA population. In March 2023, this fell further
to 58%. The graph below shows the figures for the last 3 years. As part of our
approach, we would like to increase the ratio of children in foster care to 70%.

Foster Care Three Year Trend
360

355 357

350 34Q
345
340
335
383
330

325

Number of children in Foster Care

320
2021 2022 2023

Year

55% of children living in foster care are male compared to 45% female, (similar to
the overall CLA population — see Chapter 4). The age profile of children in foster
care (below) shows that in-house carers meet the needs of all age groups. The
greatest number of foster care placements are for the 10-15 year age group,

42
Page 86



(both in-house and carers provided by Independent Fostering Agencies (IFA)),
reflecting the increasing CLA in this age group. Targeted recruitment of in-house
foster carers for these children would therefore reduce the reliance on IFAs as
well as reduce children living in residential homes due to lack of sufficiency.

Children in Foster care by Age as at 30 April 2023

B0

70

50

50

40

30

20

ol 10

G I .

0-4 5-3 10-15 15-17 18+

m Agency Carer  mSCC Carer
A total of 333 children in care were living with foster carers in March 2023.

Somerset has a lower percentage of in-house foster carers than comparators.
In recent years in-house foster care households have declined. Between October
2021 and October 2022, the number of households fell by 48 households. In March
2022 there were 148 households. The decline continued and by March 2023 there
were 134 (a drop of 10% during the year).

Data shows that in the 10 months from April 2022 to January 2023, there were 35
de-registrations of foster carers. These were spread across all ages of carers, but
the majority were aged between 40 and 69 years. 23 had been foster carers for over
2 years and there were a range of reasons for their de-registration. These included:

e A change in family circumstances (15 carers)

e Resignation (8 carers)

e An inability to comply with either minimum standards or the foster care
agreement (5 carers)

e Retirement (3 carers)

In 2022-23 Somerset commissioned consultants to do a deep dive into internal foster
care trends and spend. The true cost of internal foster care placements is not
known. However, the review found that:

43
Page 87



e Data quality needs to improve

e Recruitment needs to be maximised to improve conversion rates for enquiry

to approval

e More work is needed to achieve sufficiency of homes

e Greater engagement of foster carers is needed, particularly when finding
homes.

As a result, an in-house fostering change programme has been developed.
10.1.2 Children living in kinship arrangements

The number of children living in kinship foster care arrangements has been
slowly falling over the last 3 years. In March 2021 there were 43 children; 39
children in March 2022; and in March 2023 this fell further to 36 children living in
kinship arrangements. However, a total of 116 Connected Person Assessments
were completed in 2022-23.

10.1.3 Children living in residential children’s homes
The number of CLA living in residential homes has increased over the last 3

years.

Children living in residential homes - Three year trend
120

100

80

60

Number

40

20

2021 2022 2023

As of 315 March 2023, 17% of children in care were living in residential homes.

The majority of these children were aged 10-15 years, followed by 16 and 17 year
olds. There was also a higher number of boys in residential homes (63%).

10.1.4 Other homes for CLA
Other CLA were living in the following homes as at 315t March 2023:

2 young people in Youth Offending Institutes

7 children in parent and child placements (6 in IFA and 1 in residential)
37 children in Kinship arrangements

60 children placed with parents.

Page 88

44



10.1.5 Secure Children’s homes

Children who need places in secure children’s homes (SCHs) are particularly
affected by the lack of suitable accommodation. The secure estate is high risk and
high cost. Running this type of provision is therefore a considerable undertaking for
any local authority?®. The number of SCHs has reduced from 29 in March 2002 to
14 in March 2022. The number of beds has also reduced from 425 to 231 over the
same period. In Somerset this has sometimes meant competing with 40 other live
referrals when only 1 bed was available across the country.

10.2 Where are young people 16+ living?
The table below, shows the number of Somerset’s 16 to 22 year olds in care or care

leavers in different placements and as a percentage the total placements for the year
ending 315t March 2022:

Type of Placement Number % of total placements

Supported Accommodation 158 34%
Independent Accommodation 115 25%
Fostering 50 11%
Staying Put 46 10%
Family 38 8%
Other 33 7%
Residential 25 5%
Total 465 100%

The Demand and Capacity of Homes for Children in Care Report showed that
Somerset’s use of supported accommodation was average when compared to the
other 15 local authorities who took part in the research. However, Somerset had seen
above average growth in the use of supported accommodation. Section 9 of this report
shows the increasing cost of this and outlines developments as part of our strategy.

10.3 Tier 4 CAMHS Beds

Alongside the increase in demand for CAMHS beds there has been a
significant drop in supply. In Q1 of 2017/18 there were 117,128 CAMHS Tier 4
bed days across the country. This dropped significantly to 70,001 in Q4 of 221/22.
In Somerset the drop in provision has been even more startling. In Q1 in 2017/18
there were 1,160 CAMHS Tier 4 bed days in Somerset compared to only 17 in Q4 of
2021/22.

20 How local authorities plan for sufficiency of accommodation that meets the needs of children in care and care
leavers - GOV.UK (www.gov.uk)

45
Page 89


https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/how-local-authorities-plan-for-sufficiency-children-in-care-and-care-leavers/how-local-authorities-plan-for-sufficiency-of-accommodation-that-meets-the-needs-of-children-in-care-and-care-leavers
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/how-local-authorities-plan-for-sufficiency-children-in-care-and-care-leavers/how-local-authorities-plan-for-sufficiency-of-accommodation-that-meets-the-needs-of-children-in-care-and-care-leavers

11.0 External Placement Spend

Part of our strategy is to develop and apply cost and demand modelling recognised
by the service and corporate stakeholders and used as the basis for joint medium-
term planning and tracking. While CLA trends are hard to forecast, we plan to
develop a “what-if?” range of parameters to assist with medium-term planning. We
are working closely with external consultants and a cross-service reference group to
develop a cost and demand modelling tool, which proposes “optimistic” and
“pessimistic” scenarios for CLA and associated placement costs.

e The optimistic scenario assumes that the rate of CLA entering and leaving care is
broadly consistent with the last five years i.e. that placement mix and unit costs
will remain proportionally similar to the current position, and that the cost inflation
will return to a level of around 3% per annum in 2025/26.

e The pessimistic scenario assumes that there will be an increase of children
entering care due to the impact of the cost-of-living crisis, and that unregistered
placements will increase due to market breakdown.

These trajectories will give us a practical range of costs for planning assumptions.

46
Page 90



12.0 Governance and Next Steps

The development and implementation of this strategy is overseen by the CLA
Outcomes Transformation Group. Further scrutiny of progress will be provided by
the Corporate Parenting Board and Children and Families Scrutiny.

In order to track progress, the following indicators have been agreed which will be
tracked on a quarterly basis:

Number of CLA

Percentage of CLA in foster care (in-house and external)
Number of in-house foster carers

Number of kinship arrangements

Number of CLA living in and out of somerset by placement type
Number of CLA with more than 3 placement moves

Number of CLA who have been in placement for >2 years

The number of children’s homes and beds in Somerset

The number of unregistered placements

Placement spend broken down by placement type.

There will be an annual sufficiency statement, which will be shared publicly.

This will outline our progress in achieving sufficiency for our children and will in turn

inform a wider annual programme plan.
By taking this approach we will ensure that the strategy is current and that we are

responding to emerging and changing needs of our children. The overall strategy
however will be revised in 2028.

Page 91

47



Contact Us

P
Sy Somerset.gov.uk

)X{ childrenscommissioning@somerset.gov.uk



mailto:childrenscommissioning@somerset.gov.uk

2023/24
Children &
Families
Budget amilies
Monitoring

N Somerset
¥ Council

>
Q
%)
S
o
D
=
)
3
\l




76 obed

Corporate budget monitoring position — Month 7

Overall, predicted
£18.3m overspend -
3.8% of budget.

£400k improvement
on month 6.

Largest overspends in
Adults & Children’s.

Original Current Full ¥Year Momnth 7 RAG Mowvement
Service Arca Budget Budget Projection WVariance AJ{F) = From Month &
Enn Enn £Em Em £
Adult Services
Adult Social Care Operations - Physical Disability/Sensory Loss/65 Plus 1nLe 114.2 1mnos 5.3 A Red 8.8
Adult Social Care Operations - Mental Health 26.5 23.6 24.6 1 A Read [N
Adult Social Care Operations - Leaming Disabilities 118.4 189.8 17.3 7.5 ey Red 8.8
Commissioning (62.2) (62.2) {511} 11 T Red .8
Adult Services Total 1866 1854 266.3 14.9 A Red Lo ]
Children, Families & Education Services
Children & Families 818 az21 Lot | 128 A Red 13
Commissioning and Perfformance 18.5 18.5 184 (& 1) {F} Grean a2
Inclusion 126 15.4 17.5 21 A Red .4
Education, Partnerships and Skills 17.4 141 141 .9 - Ereen (8.3
Childrens Senvices 2.7 a7 == =N )] {F) Graan .8
Children, Family & Education Services Total 123.9 122.8 1367 139 Ly Red 1.5
Community Services
Housing 5.9 (=N} 6.1 2.9 - Grean e
Customer Services o 5.4 5.4 9.9 - Green o
Cultural Services @3 a5 8.5 a8 - Grean =.4]
Regulatory & Operational Services 12,4 12,4 124 2.8 — Grean (&)
Community Services Total 34.6 32.4 324 9.5 - Green (1.32)
Climate & Place
Climate, Environment & Sustainability 54.6 55.2 55.8 2.6 A Read e
Infrastructure & Transport 22.5 2249 23.4 1.8 A Red =)
Economy, Employment & Planning 18.6 18.5 189.5 2.9 - Grean Lo >
Accountable Bodies 3.7 3.5 (3.5) {7.@) {F) Graan L]
Climate & Place Total 1.4 F1.6 86.2 (5-4) (F) Green (e.1)
Strategy, Workforce & Localities
Partnership & Localities .5 28 28 a.a - Graan o
Strategy & Performance 3.2 4.5 4.5 8.9 - Green 2.8
Workforce (=X S92 5.4 (B.5) {F} Grean (=)
Governance, Democratic & Legal Services 18.2 o3 18.7 1.4 ey Red .1
Strategy., Workforce & Localities Total 28.2 22.5 23 .4 a.9 A Red 9.8
Resources & Corporate Services
Finance e 132 .8 1.4} {F) Green e
Strategic Assat Management 2.2) {9.5) (=.a) B A Armiber (5.3)
Information Communication Technology 17.8 17.3 15.5 {1.5) {F} Grean (®.3)
Resources & Corporate Services Total 268.5 21.6 18.2 (2.8) {F) Green (9.6)
Public Health 1.2 1.6 1.6 B8 - Grean L
Mon-Serwvice F.8 F.F 6.2 (3.5) (F) Green a.1
Traded Services
CHllington a8 L] B3 a3 .y Red e
Traded Services Total B8 .6 a.3 e.3 Y Red .68
Total Service Position 487.3 4864 564.7F 18.3 A Red (G4
Corporate Contingsncy 5.8 5.7 a8.7 2E - Erean e
Total After Contingencies a493.3 as2.1 516.43 18.3 e Rl [(e.a)
Reserves 19.9) (19.6) (19.6) a6 - Green EX=
Transfers to Schools .. oo L= s - Grean e
Council Tax (345.4) (345.4) {345.4) .8 - Grean a8
Business Rates [ =t} {116.1) (1s.1y a8 - Green e
Revenuse Support Grant (7.9 {7.Q) (7.9 2.E - Gresn a.s
Flexible Use of Capital Receipts (4.8) {3.5) (2. @) 0.5 - Grean oh ]
Total Position 6.6 B8 183 18.3 A Red [(-5]




C h I I d re n S Se rVI C e b u d g et Current |Actualsto Further | Full Year | Month 7 RAG Movement
. . L. Service Area Budget M7 Forecasts |Projection | Variance A/(F) Sintus From Month 6
monitoring position — Month tn | n _tm | om | om o
Children & Families
7 Prevention Services 5.7 21 26 5.7 0.8 B Green ®1)
Fostering & Permanence 133 7.7 4.9 12.6 8.7) F) Green (8.8)
External Placements 384 31.3 18.8 49.3 108.9 A Red 8.5
Fieldwork 9.1 6.6 38 10.4 1.2 A Red 0.4
Disabilities 6.8 4.2 21 6.3 8.5) F) Green 0.8
Partnership, Audit & Quality 27 15 1.2 2.7 0.0 - Green 0.0
Children Looked After 4.8 22 27 4.9 81 A Red ®1)
Leaving Care 22 8.9 1.6 25 0.2 A Red 0.8
CSC Management (8.9) 11 1.4} (8.3) 8.6 A Red 0.6
G e N e ral fu N d C&F Apportionments 0.8 8.6 9.8 0.8 8.8 - Green 0.8
sub total 821 58.6 35.5 94.1 120 A Red 13
Commissioning and Performance
£122.8m net budget 20 | 65 25 | 20 | 60 - Gem oo
Performance and Transformation 4.4 28 15 4.3 @1 (F) Green 6.8)
Business Support 41 29 1.2 41 6.6 - Green 6.6
Children, Families & Education Team 8.0 0.8 0.0 8.0 0.0 - Green 8.2
v £13.9m forecast overspend ca oo Snices 00 | 6o oo | 00 | 00 . Gen oo
g_) sub total 18.5 5.2 5.2 10.4 (6.1) (F) Green 6.2
(@] 11 3 / d Inclusion
) ( . 0 0 Ove rS p e n Special Educational Needs and Disabilities 27 382 (35.5) 27 0.6 - Green 0.0
O Vulnerable Learners 8.2 8.6 (8.6 0.8 (8.2) (F) Green (8.2)
o1 Educational Psychology 2.1 1.0 1.2 22 8.1 A Red 8.1
Inclusion Transformation and Partnerships 0.1 9.1 0.3 8.4 0.3 A Red 0.3
SEND Transport 181 57 6.4 121 26 A Red 0.2
Inclusion Strategic Management 0.2 (8.4) 8.5 8.1 8.1) F) Green (8.1)
sub total 15.4 45.2 (27.7) 17.5 21 A Red 0.4
Education, Partnerships and Skills
Education Leadership 8.1 8.6 8.9) (8.3) 9.4) (F) Green 8.2)
Education Operations (8.1) 8.9 1.2) (8.3) 8.2) (F) Green 6.8
Curriculum and Literacy (®.1) 0.2 8.2) 81 0.2 A Red 8.3)
Education Places 0.6 5.8 5.1) 8.7 81 A Red 0.8
Home to School Transport 12.9 147.8) 159.6 12.6 (8.3) (F) Green (8.3)
EPS Management 8.7 8.0 1.2 13 0.6 A Red 8.5
sub total 14.1 (139.4) 1535 14.1 0.0 - Green (6.2)
Childrens Services
Childrens Directorate 8.7 8.0 0.6 8.6 ®1) (F) Green (®1)
sub total 0.7 6.0 6.6 0.6 (8.1) (F) Green (68.1)
Children, Families & Education Services Total 122.8 (30.4) 167.1 136.7 13.9 A Red 1.5




External Placements Monitoring & Forecasting

23/24 Full Year Month 7
. . Ext | PI t Budget Projection Varian

The table opposite provides a aermaTTacements Lo Toneon TR
breakdown of the external placements Residential Placements 244 306 62
Independent Fostering Agencies 8.2 7.5 (0.7)
bUdget by placement type 16+ Supported Accommodation 5.7 6.7 1.0
- Homes & Horizons 4.1 3.9 (0.1)
3 The main areas of overspend are: orscracements 15 .5 03
8 p ) Residential Parent & Child 1.1 0.8 (0.3)
Secure 0.9 1.4 0.5
. . Other 1.3 2.6 1.3
* Residential placements - £6.2m Total Expenditure 51.3 63.6 12.3
forecast overspend DSG Grant (5.0) (6.0) (1.0)
UASC Grant (2.4) (2.7) (0.3)
] NHS Funding (5.3) (5.3) (0.0)
« Unregistered placements - £3.5m Other 01) (02 (0.1
fOI’ecaSt Ovel’Spend Total Income (12.9) (14.3) (1.4)
Net Expenditure 38.4 49.3 10.9




External Placements Monitoring & Forecasting

The graphs opposite show the trend in the numbers

: . : Residential Placements
of residential and unregistered placements over the _ active no. of placements at end of month
past 18 months.

100

90 -~ 90
Residential placements > /_N_/-_C-h ------ 77

77 placements were budgeted for in 23/24

N N N NN AN AN AN AN oD oD ononononon N N N N S
a4y A
> Cc 5 W aoa B3 =2 0O c o = & > c 5 Ww o+ > 90 c o =
© 3 S S 0 9 © T 2 © 3 5 S 0 0 ©
;? s 2 - Z $ O Z o - L S < s 2 - Z & O = a - & S
Q o
D Actual == == Budget Month 7 Projection
© o
~

Month 7 projections for 23/24 assume an average
of 90 FTE

Unregistered Placements
. - active no. of placements at end of month
Unregistered placements

25
20

« 3 placements were budgeted for in 23/24 0 A/\——/"\

7
0 ——————————3
« Month 7 projections for 23/24 assume an average R I I
E“_'<V)Ozo—au_§<§ﬁ*<m02g—,u_§
of 7 FTE

Actual == == Budget

Month 7 Projection




CLA Key Cost Drivers

Count of CaseNumber by Year and Month

» Relatively stable no. of CLA since Jan 2022

» Unexpected spike in summer 2022 — CYP with complex
needs

» Recent increase — sibling groups/non-accidental injury

» Impact on no. of external placements and high cost of

C @ placement
Q -
Thereases in placements numbers and Placement Numbers at 2 point in time
&
placement dayS_ .. Total Placement Days Provided/Forecast
« UASC — National Transfer Scheme M 10000
. . . & 450 _/'\-—" 120,000 o
» Residential placements — complexity of £ B
need and lack of sufficiency in fostering : s 100000 2
—_— g
sector §3oo 90,000 &
» Bespoke 16+ supported accommodation — 250 80,000
. Apr  May June July Aug Sept  Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar
Com pleXIty Of need Placement Numbers (2022 /2 3) s Placement Numbers (2023/24)
4 Reductlon |n |n-h0use fosterlng Placement Days (2022/23) s Placement Days (2023/24)

placements



CLA Key Cost Drivers

Average Weekly Cost
* Average weekly cost of ° !

. 25,000
unregistered placements .
is now £20.3k (9% 8 1500
reduction on 22/23) f:;mmo
;_)U 3 5,000 I I
@ |ncrease of 12% on : I! e RE ': S '!
“ average cost of O T S
residential placements : :‘ § EE ; P

Placement Type

H2021/22 W2022/23 W2023/24



23/24 DSG Budget Monitoring Report

Forecast outturn as at the end of September (Month 7)

£15.5m forecast in year deficit; cumulative £38.0m deficit

Tota.l fund;ng 2023/24 Forecast in-year el [y et NFF drawn Forizzsrt : Forecast carry

- DSG Block £m av:;lravti)(l:e;sor Forecast variance .st.xrplus/ DSG Block £m 15'?:::”2“ 0;3 from Growth variance forward 31

%, 2023/24 Month 7 (deficit) (Deficit) Fund ?:;I:::i{ Mar 2024
5 Schools 2.5 2.9 (0.4) Schools 2.6 (1.2) (0.4) 1.0
© Central Schools 5.0 5.0 - Central Schools 5.6 - - 5.6
Early Years 31.1 31.1 - Early Years 0.9 - - 0.9
High Needs 73.5 89.1 (15.6) High Needs (29.8) - (15.6) (45.4)
Total 112.1 128.1 (16.0) Total (20.7) (1.2) (16.0) (38.0)



TOT obed

23/24 Budget Monitoring Report

Forecast Variance Forecast Movement

Month 7 A/(F) Month 6 from
Month 6
Home to School Transport 12.9 12.6 (0.3) 12.9 (0.3)
SEND Transport 10.1 12.1 2.0 11.8 0.3
Total 23.0 24.7 1.7 24.7 -

* Increased demand on SEN Transport due to rising numbers of children in
Specialist provision combined with inflationary pressures

* SEN passenger numbers have doubled since 2018 from 674 to over 1,250

* Mainstream transport subject to inflationary pressure and passenger
numbers remain flat



Questions




Short Breaks
Somerset

10t January 2024

N Somerset
¥ Council

>
Q
%)
S
o
D
=
)
3
o¢)




What Is a
short Holiday activities

break? Daycare
Fostering
Residential

» School wrap-around activities (the right to work)

* Family trips (family bonding, not a break)

What isn’t a short break?

* Some holiday activities (where parent must be present)

* Some Direct Payments



GOT obed

Statutory Requirements

Chronically Sick and

Disabled Persons Act The Children and Families

1970 Equality Act 2010 Act 2014

1989 2011

1970 | 2010

The Children Act 1989 Short Breaks for Carers of
Disabled Children 2011

2014

The Care Act 2014

2014

2014

The Special Educational
Needs (Personal budgets)
Regulations 2014



90T abed

Local
authorities
Must:

Provide a range of short breaks services

Give families the choice to access short breaks
services using a direct payment

Publish a statement of their short breaks services
on their website

Keep their short breaks statement under review

State in their short breaks service statement the
range of short breaks services available, the criteria
by which eligibility for services will be assessed,
and how the range of services is designed to meet
the needs of families with disabled children in their
area

Consult parents as part of the review of the
statement



Current figures

141 Children with Disabilities with a Social Worker
427 Children with disabilities receiving early support.

5490 current EHCPs



 Two homes (reduced from 3 in 2022) — total
of 8 beds a night for children to experience
overnight short breaks — but underused due
to staffing.

e 21 Somerset Supporters (reduced from 80 in
2000)

e 1 dedicated Short Break foster carer
resources (reduced from 35 in 2015)

 Summer holiday provision from the
Children’s Inclusive Activities (CIA) team for
752 children and young people '

 Summer Holiday Activities and Food (HAF)
provision for 857 children with SEND

Current

o




4

Sprin



What

families told
us....

”
“It’s my life, not a service”

“We want to have the same opportunities as
everyone else”

“We shouldn’t have to fight for what we need”

“There’s a new build leisure centre close to me,
but without accessible facilities, because there’s
another leisure centre 20 miles away which is
accessible — so they said they didn’t need to make
the new one accessible”

“I’'m a 17 year old male, and my mum has to do
my personal care”

“If | could take my child to the park, | wouldn’t
need a short break”

“I don’t ask about clubs — they won’t want my
child to go”

\



* Time: The process to get short breaks is too long

» Assessment: Restricted resources can impact a true
assessment of need

* Trust: earning parents’ trust is vital

* Range: meeting needs across age-range, ability and
interests and geography of Somerset, is difficult.

* Transport: needs to be available and accessible

Big Issues

* Workforce: Supporting children & young people
with disabilities and their families should be a
rewarding and popular career

* The fight: parent carers consistently describe getting
help to be a fight — directly impacting wellbeing and
mental health

* Feedback: SPCF, Event feedback, Complaints, ,
mediation, tribunals and ombudsman judgments

o




Process

o-¢

J
H<©

Re-design the assessment process to
be faster

Increase access to local resources so
that needs can be met nearer, faster.



Workforce

¢TT obed

* Make it easy for me to work with
children safely

* Working with children should be a
rewarding job

* Encourage activity providers to work in this

field
*  Work with micro-providers to dispel myths
* Identify the right incentives for the

workforce




yTT abed

Community Hubs

* Hubs — Centres of expertise for staff,
parent carers and foster carers —
including residential homes

* More opportunities for children and
young people to have overnight short
breaks and day time activities

* Harnessing resources and skills of
community projects and special schools

* Flexible —able to meet a range of needs




GTT obed

Pulling these actions
together to....

* Increase local support,
reducing transport.

* Increase families’ ability to get
help earlier, faster.

* Improve families’ ability to
support each other

* Increase families’ ability to
influence local provision




ooooooooo

Next steps...

01

Action Plan —
finalised in
January

02

Fortnightly

meetings to
progress

03

Return to
Scrutiny in May
to provide
update




Scrutiny
gl\/lembers -

-what can
you do?

Be our critical friend — what do we need to be
mindful of?

Workforce — can you help us make this a career
to be proud of?

Accessibility in your community — eg the design
of parks and play areas, toilets, neurodiversity.

Support — keep children with disabilities in
mind, and help us get the resources families
need.



8TT abed

Questions



Education Place Planning

10t January 2024

N Somerset
¥ Council

6 Waj| epuaby



Introduction

The Council has a statutory duty to make sure there are enough childcare places to enable parents
to take up or remain in work and training; to have free early years education for all eligible young
children in their area; and undertake an assessment of the sufficiency of childcare places in its area

at least every 3 years, with an annual update, and publish the assessments in the prescribed
anner.
o

Childcare Act 2006

The Council also has a duty to make sure there are enough school places for children and young
people who live in the county and to make sure these places are of good quality with enough space
to promote parental choice and diversity and to undertake an assessment of the sufficiency of
school places in its area with annual updates.

Education Act 1996



Somerset Context

On the whole, Somerset’s pupil numbers are in gradual decline, a key factor being the falling
birth rate in the county:

Number of live births - Somerset 2004 - 2022

5707
5614 5654 35671 sngg 55EE 5624

5764
5470
5390 5367
#2850 S22 cies
sogg 2149 5063
4
| | | | i | I
2004 200 013 2014 2015 2016 2017 22

5 2006 005 HOOE A0 0100 2011 2002 2 f200E A0S A0 p021 0 202

T2T obed

While the overall trend is a gradual decline, development in certain areas is resulting in
iIncreased pupil numbers, whilst pupil numbers in some rural areas are reducing dramatically,
creating viability challenges.



Somerset Context

Until the pandemic, housing developments and the families migrating into Somerset to live in

them were offsetting birth rates.
Since then, the Phosphates issue has slowed the rate at which planning applications are
approved and more recently, higher interest rates have impacted on house sales.

Employment opportunities have drawn families to Somerset with Hinkley Point C (Sedgemoor)
and the NHS (Taunton) both having an impact on demand for school places.

2cT abed

Primary pressures:
Chard (town) — increase of 27 on 2022 (forecast to increase by 3)

Taunton (town) - increase of 58 on 2022 (forecast to fall by 50)
Wellington (town) — increase of 13 on 2022 (forecast to fall by 15)
Yeovil (town) —increase of 34 on 2022 (forecast to fall by 24)

Secondary pressures:
Bridgwater - increase of 148 on 2022 (forecast to increase by 103)
Wellington — increase of 47 on 2022 (forecast to increase by 13)




Projection Modelling

When modelling pupil projection figures there are a number of factors which we are able to
consider:

« Birth rate data

« School roll data

Migration data

Housing ‘with a reasonable degree of certainty’

c2T obed

The limited scope of projection criteria has impacted on our ability to describe longer-term,
strategic education needs.

This is something we are actively working to improve, embracing the opportunities LGR has
brought, particularly in regard to engagement with Planning teams.



Education Growth

Going forward, we have to be able to communicate a longer-term strategic approach to
education growth.

We have to be able to produce projections in line with DfE requirements but also factor the
8 s impact of Local Plans into our calculations and ensure we and our partners understand our
® ® future education infrastructure requirements.

I\)
D

We’'re going to need to develop and resource a Strategy which is built on automated, multi-

layered projection models and supporting qualitative commentary.

______>

i)

o




Pupil Yields

When considering the impact of housing developments, a key element is the anticipated pupil
yield:

Early Years — 10 children per 100 homes
Primary — 32 children per 100 homes
§Secondary — 14 children per 100 homes
® SEND — 0.92 children per 100 homes
N
0]
The DfE has recently verified this data for primary and secondary, SEND has been recently
updated using local data and will be formalised through a NKD in the coming weeks.

Early Years yield is likely to rise over the coming 18 months as the Extended Entitlement agenda
will increase the number of funded EY places which are required across the county.



9¢T abed

Local First Approach

When planning places, significant regard is given to
statutory walking distances:

Under 8 = 2 miles
8 & over = 3 miles

If sufficient school places are not available within these
distances, the council incurs significant additional
transport costs:

Taxi £25k - £30k per annum
Minibus: £30k - £35k per annum
Coach: £55k - £65k per annum

We would also face significant increases in school
admission appeals as parents have the right to apply for
a school place of their choice.

wool@ingt

1 Puriton

- BNdl ip

Chilton Trinity

Clgedzoy

T West

Huntworth

Goathurst

North Petherton

Northmoor Green or Moorland




Developer Contributions

The DfE expects all new school builds, required as a result of housing development, to be
funded by developer contributions. In reality, the collective call on those contributions (Housing,
Education, Highways, Health etc etc) and the legislation which protects developers’ profits,
means that nothing is fully funded by contributions and that the Council will have to meet some
of the cost required to deliver community infrastructure.

-

Q

@ Those contributions also come through in retrospect, so we have to forward fund education

Einfrastructure projects in advance to ensure places are available for children moving into
developments.

Not having those places will mean the Council would have to transport children to the next
nearest schools with places — this would be a significant ongoing cost. Parental preference and
a general pressure on places in some areas would mean we would not benefit from any
economies of scale, and we’'d be transporting children across a wide geographical area in taxis
and minibuses.



Extended Entitlement

N Somerset
¥ Council



The Extended Childcare Offer

Funded childcare for working families

From April 2024 working parents of two-year-olds will be able to access 15 hours
_of funded childcare per week for 38 weeks a year (a maximum of 570 hours per
gyear).

“From September 2024 this offer will be extended to working parents of children
from the age of nine months.

From September 2025 working parents of children from nine months to five years
will be entitled to 30 hours of funded childcare per week for 38 weeks a year (a

maximum of 1140 hours per year).



Somerset Context

Data from Spring Term 2023

0¢T abed

7012 children accessed the Universal Entitlement of 15 hours per week of funded
childcare (99% of 3 & 4-year-olds)

3843 children accessed the Extended Entitlement of 30 hours a week of funded
childcare (54% of 3 & 4-year-olds)

1058 2-year-olds accessed funded childcare in Somerset (84% of eligible
applicants)

Somerset’s EY population increased by 2% between 2022 and 2023 but is forecast
to decline over next few years

459 providers — 177 childminders and 282 group provisions (excluding before and
after school clubs and holiday providers) (August 2023)

Overall, there are currently sufficient places to meet demand



DfE Data

* From April 2024 it is projected that 42% of the 2-year-old population in
Somerset will use the new entitlement.

 From September 2024 it is projected that 35% of the 0 — 2-year-old
population in Somerset will use the new entitlement.

« The MSOAs anticipated to require the most additional places are:
* Stockmoor & North Petherton 'z
+ Taunton Halcon & Monkton Heathfield
* Yeovil Milford Park
« Taunton Holway & Lambrook

* Grouping MSOASs roughly into EYCs this is mirrored and shows the most
additional places are needed in Yeovil, Bridgwater and Taunton.

TET obed

DATA

-~ ANALYSIS




The Expanded Childcare Offer

Survey of Providers

The Education Places Strategy Team surveyed EY providers to investigate
their readiness for the expanded childcare offer.

ZsT abed

+ 60% said they did not have the capacity to increase the number of places
they offered

* 67% said their premises could not be expanded to increase the number of
places offered; barriers included funding, staffing and space

« 59% said they had concerns about sustainability as a result of the
expanded childcare offer - due to funding and the recruitment and retention
of staff



The Expanded Childcare Offer

Other actions by the Local Authority

Somerset has received government funding (2023/24) of £91k for EY
Expansion and £30k for Wrap Around Childcare. We have also been
awarded £995,342 capital for the combined roll out of both agendas.

ceT obed

The Team is engaged with providers who may be able to expand to offer
more places.

The Entitlements Team and Infrastructure Applications Team are working with

Capita to ensure the new funding applications can be checked
and processed.



Expansion of Wrap
Around Provision

N Somerset
¥ Council



Wrap Around Provision

From Spring Budget 2023:

« The government will give local authorities in England £289 million over two
academic years, starting in September 2024, to set up wrap around provision
In schools.

& Details on how funding will be released is emerging

« The 'ambition’ is that all children are able to access 8am to 6pm childcare
provision in school by 2026, either at their own school or in partnership with
other local schools

« '8am to 6pm' not fixed, can be flexible based on local need

T abed



Wrap Around Provision

Survey Highlights

 950% of schools offer a breakfast club
19% of schools offer after school provision until 6pm

« 20 EY responses offer wrap around provision, half of these
being Childminders

o¢T abed
[ ]




Wrap Around Provision

Barriers for Parents:

* Provision not offered 5 days a week

* Finish at or before 5pm

* High cost

« Schools not accepting tax free childcare

/€T obed



Wraparound Provision

Provider Barriers: l “
\‘i\—/

m Staffing ® Lack of demand

8¢T abed

m Additional staff (cleaners/security) = Safeguarding
m Space = Funding

m SEND




Actions

* Focus on wrap around care for school age children
 Mapping demand from parents / carers

* Cross reference with current and anticipated future levels of
wrap around provision

Qg- Strategies to address identified barriers, particularly staffing
~  (recruitment and retention)

* Focus on barriers which prevent children with SEND
accessing wrap around care



Questions

Q

N\

phil.curd@somerset.gov.uk



mailto:phil.curd@somerset.gov.uk

	Agenda
	 Public Guidance Notes contained in Agenda Annexe
	 Information about the Scrutiny Committee - Children & Families
	 Details on how to join the meeting online
	3 Minutes from the meeting held on Tuesday 12 December 2023
	Minutes

	5 Scrutiny Committee - Children and Families Work Programme
	(b) The Committee's Outcome Tracker

	6 Sufficiency Strategy for children looked after and care leavers – 2023-28
	Slide 1
	Slide 2
	Slide 3
	Slide 4
	Slide 5
	Slide 6
	Slide 7
	Slide 8
	Slide 9
	Sufficiency Strategy for children looked after and care leavers – 2023-28

	7 2023/24 Children's Services - Budget Monitoring
	Slide 1
	Slide 2
	Slide 3
	Slide 4
	Slide 5
	Slide 6
	Slide 7
	Slide 8
	Slide 9
	Slide 10

	8 Update on short break provision (respite)
	Slide 1
	Slide 2: What is a short break?
	Slide 3: Statutory Requirements
	Slide 4: Local authorities must:
	Slide 5: Current figures  141 Children with Disabilities with a Social Worker   427 Children with disabilities receiving early support.  5490 current EHCPs
	Slide 6: Current resources
	Slide 7: Sprint
	Slide 8: What families told us….
	Slide 9: Big issues
	Slide 10: Process
	Slide 11: Workforce
	Slide 12: Community Hubs
	Slide 13: Pulling these actions together to….  
	Slide 14: Next steps…
	Slide 15: Scrutiny Members - what can you do?
	Slide 16: Questions

	9 Education Place Planning
	Slide 1
	Slide 2
	Slide 3
	Slide 4
	Slide 5
	Slide 6
	Slide 7
	Slide 8
	Slide 9
	Slide 10
	Slide 11
	Slide 12
	Slide 13
	Slide 14
	Slide 15
	Slide 16
	Slide 17
	Slide 18
	Slide 19
	Slide 20
	Slide 21
	Slide 22


